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Employee Benefit Plans
(cl}fvi)

The 2023 403(b) audit {completed in 2024} contained reportable findings related to internal
cortrol deficiencies. These findings are being addressed by HEB.
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Schedule 4.21
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Schedule 4.21(a} - Attachment 1: £mployee Census
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Schedule 4.22

Hospice East Bay Litipation




Schedule 4.23
Tax Matters

Noaie

VRALEEDS 39
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Schedule 4.24

Environmental Matters

None

40
1440324 1
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Schedule 4.25
Tax-Exempt Bond Debt

Nonc

41
TAHEA24 .4
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Schedule 4.26
Other Endebtedness

Nonc

TA4O5I4 4
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Absence of Changes

None

43
74403244
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Chapters Authority; Noncontravention

[There are no owistanding powers of attorney executed by or on behalf of Chapters. The execution,
delivery and pevjormance of this Agreement and ¢ach other Transaction Document by Chaplers
therelo and the consummation by Chapiers of the Transaction, as applicable: |

[(a} are within Chapiery” powers and are nof in contravention or vielaiion of the terms of the
articles of incorporution or bylavs of Chapters and have been. or will be prior to ihe Closing,
approved by ail requisite corporate action, |

[{b) excepi ax set jorth un Schedule 5.2(h), do nat vequive that Chapters seek or oblain uny
Approval of, filing or registration with, the issuance of any material Permit bv. or give ame Notice
to, any Governmental Authoritv; |

[(c) asswmning the Approvals and Permits set forth on Schedule 5.2(6) are okicined. to the
Knowledge of Chapters, will noi conflict in any material respect with, or result in anv violation of
or default under (with or without notice or lapse or both), or give rise to a right of termination,
cancellution, aceeleration or augmeniation of any obligation or lo foss of anv material Benefit
under, (i} any Coniraet, instrument, indenture, covenanl, or understending o which Chapters iy
bound or is u party, or (ii) any Order or Law o which Chapters may be subject. and)

{{d) to the Knowledge of Chapters, will neither conflict with, nor result in, o maierial breach or
contravention of any agreement, lease, instrument, indenture, covenant, or understanding to whick
Chapters is hound or is a party./

44
7440324 4
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Schedule 3.4
Chapters Financeial Information

[fa) Schedule 3 4(a) hereto contains the foltowing financial statements and financial information
of Chapiers (the “Chapters Historical I'inancial Information”):
fi} the auedited consolidated balance sheets, statements of operation, statemenits of changes
i net assets, and statements of cash flow (including the auccompanying consolidating
schedules of balance sheet information and statement of operation information) for
Chapters as of. and for the twelve-monih periods ended December 31, 2023, and December
3i, 2022,
fii) the unaudited consolidated balance sheet fncluding the accompanying consolidating
schedules of balance sheet information) and unaudited consofidated  statement of
operations (including the accompanying consolidating schedides of starement of operation
information) prepared in the Ordinary Course of Business for the fiscal period ending on
a date which is not more than sixty (60) calendar duvs prios to the date of this Agreement. §

ftb) The consolidated financial stuiements imcluded in the Chapters Hisiorical Financial
Information have been prepared in accordunce with GAAP, epplied on a consistenl basis
throughout the periods indicated (subject, in the case of the unaudited Chapiers Historical
Financial Information, to the absence of notes and normal year-end audit adjustments, the effect
of which is not material to Chaplers), and are based an the information contained in the books
and records of Chapters and its Affiliates. Chapiers has not materially changed any accounting
policy or methodology during the periods presenmted in the Chapters Historical Financial
Information (incliding accounting policies and methodologies for deteymining the obsolescence
of inventory or in calowlating reserves, including reserves for uncollected accounts receivable). ]

Td40324.4
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Schedule 5.5

Chapters Litigation

{Except as set forth on Schedule 5.5 (1) there is no Proceeding or Order pending or, to the
Knowledge of Chapters. threatened againsi or affecting Chaprers before any court or
Governmental Authority that has or would reasonablv be expected to have a material adverse
gifect on Chapters " ability 10 perform this Agreement; and (1)) Chapters is not subject to any Order
that would materially and adversety affect the consummution of the Transaction.]

46
74403244
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Schedule 5.6

Chapters Regulatory Compliance

[Except as set forth on Schedule 3.6, for the prioy three (3} years:|

[{a) Neither Chapters, nor to Chapters’ Knowledge, any of its respective officers, direciors or
employees, has been convicted of, charged with, investigated for, or has engaged in conduct that
would reasonably be expecied o constitute, a Medicare or other Federal Health Cave Program
fas defined in 42 U.8.C. § 1320a-7(b)(f)) related offense or convicted of charged with, investigated
for, or engaged in conduct that would constitute a violation of any Law related o fraud, thefi,
embezzioment, breach of fiduciury duty, kickbacks, bribes, other financial misconduct, obstruction
of an investigation or controlled substances. Neither Chapters, nor to Chaprers ' Knowledge, any
officer. director or emplovee of Chaprers has been excluded from porticipating in any Government
Program, subject to sanction pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-Ta or § 13200a-8 or becn convicted of
a crime described at 42 U85.C § 1320a-7h, nov are any such exclusions, sanctions or charges
threaiened or pending. /

[P} Chapters (i) (s not a pariv o a corporate integrity agreement with the OIG, (i} has ro
reporting obligations pursuant to any settlement agreement entered into with any Governmentul
Autihority, (iii} has not been jormally notified thai it s the subject of any Governmenr Program
investigation conducied by any federal or siate enforcement agency (wot including routine or
random survevs, audils or reviews which do not or reasonably should not vesult in findings
materially adverse to the relevant Chapters), and {ivi has not been formally notified that it is o
defendant in any qut tameFalse Claims Act litigation (other than by reason of o sealed complaini
of which Chapters may have no Knowledge). f

ftct Excepr in compliance with applicable Lo, neither Chapters, nor to Chaprers’ Knamwiedge,
any of their officers, directors oF emploveex Iy a parfy [0 dny CORIPGCE, [2G86 dgreement or olfter
arrangement (including any joint venture or consulting agreement) reluted 1o Chapters with any
physician, phyvsical ov occupational therapist, health care facility, hospital, mersing facility, home
health agency or other person or entily that Is in o position 1o meake or influence referrals 1o or
otherwise generate business for Chupters with respect (o {ts gsseis, to provide services or fzase
space of equipment. |

47
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Schedule 3.7

Chapters Tax Matters

[Excepr as set forth on Schedule 5.7,/

fta) To the Knowledge of Chapters, Chapters (i) is, and has been since the date of its
incorporalion, an organization exempt from federal income tax under § 5iti(a} of the Code as an
organization that is described in § 30H(c)(3), (ii) is not, and has not been since the date of its
incorporation, a private foundation within the meaning of § 309(a) of the Code because if is an
organization described In §§ SOUa)l), 509%ai(2) or 5093}, (iii) is in possession of a
determination letier from the Internal Revenue Service to such cffect, which determination letter
has not been revoked or otherwise modified, (v} is in compliance in all material respects with all
applicable Laws pertaining to the operation of an organization described in § 501(c)(3) of the
Code, and (v) has not eniered into any iransaction that would reasonably be expected to consiitute
an “excess benefit iransaction” within the meaning of § 4958 of the Code.}

[(h) Chapters has filed all Tax Rerurns required 1o be filed by it All Taxes due and owing by
Chapters (whether or not shown on any Tax Return), have either been paid or are being contested
in good faith by appropriate Proceedings for which adequate reserves have been established,
Except with respect to waivers or cxtensions that are no longer in force. Chapters has not waived
any statute of limitations in respect of Taxes or agreed to any extension of time with respect to a
fax assessment or deficiency other than ordinary course extensions of time within which (o file
any Tax Return,]

ftc) Chapters has withheld and paid oll material Taxes required (o have been withheld and paid
by it in connection with amounis paid or owing to any emplovee, independent contractor, creditor
or ather third party, and all Internal Revenue Service Forms W-2 and 1099 requived with respect
thereto have been properly completed and timely filed {taking into account all extensions).]

{td) Chapters has nof received any written notice from any Governmental Authority of deficiency
or assessment, or proposed adjustment or assessment, in vespect of Taxes of Chaprers. To the
Knowledge of Chapters, there ave no pending or threatened Proceedings velating o ony lability
in vespect of Taxes of Chapters). |

43
Tadi) 324 o
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Schedule 7.1(h)

Agreements That Create Employment Obligations

Hospice Fast Bay’s severance policy applies lo all employees based on years of services (sce
below).

HUMAN RESOLRCK POLICY MANUAL  Number:
Policy Section: Employnwntand Performance Blfestive Daws 100019
Subject: SEVERANCE T T T Revision Dats ]

“Dage Number: 1 of |

PURPOST:

The purpase of this policy is 0 provide puidetines outlining Hospice of the Erst Bay s
severanes policy.

Eiigibility

This poiicy applics w all cxempt and ronexempt. fuli-time and part-time employees. Part-Gw
employees will regeive sevemance pay o a pro-rated basis i accordance with their scheduled
Buurs.

Triggering Kvengs

It vl of an involunary fennination dec 1o 4 ssduetion i free/downsizing, change i
company dirzciion, or job elimination, Hospice of the Fast Bay provides 2 severance benefit fin
1he aflzctsd employess, This does not upply to terminations for cause/perfonnance/misconduct,
re{usal fo be ceassigned oo refusal 1o be relocated,

Payment Amount

The rate of severance is based on bemgeth of seevice wath Mospice of the Bast Bay (ur o5 adjusted

throweh acgaizition).

{Leagth of Rervice Sumber of YWeeks
Tosy than ome venr - less than 2 2
Two years - 1es3 than thres 4 é
|
Thres years - less than fvar 4] |
|
Fout vears - less than {ive 8 |

49
1440324 4



Five years - [ess than six

Six veary - less than seven

Seven ¥EATE Or aes

13

The maimuun allowed soverapos iy Wirloen wieks Severnee is ¢aleuialed on base pay only,

Physician {independent contractor) and other employment agreoments:

Physician Name

Date of Agreement |

La;}mﬂddendum Gate

Smita Chandra, MD 03.01.3023 03012023
Ming Chang, MD, CMO 05.02.2023

Robert Co?@,_ED 03.01.2023

Russ Granich, MD 062.12.2023

Michael Jensen-Akula, MO 01.01 72015 03.15.2024
Sonia Kassuba, MO 12.61.2021 04.01.2024

Tiffany King, MD 02.16.2673

stephame Marguet, MD 02.03.2626 06.14,2021 B
Guy "icca, MD 03.01.23 ]
[Walter Paters, MI 0l.cl.2015 04.01.2024

Sally Sarmple, MD (9.18.23 G031 .2024

Ann Stevens, 1D 03.01.2022

Ciara Trigne, MD 04.01.2022 031572024

Nata'a Zielkiewicz, MO | 02.12.2023 D4.01.2024

8:1 Musick, Interim President & CECQ

01.13.2023

05.01.2024

FAGHILS §



Hospice East Bay Closing Balance Sheet

[ This will be provided at closing as this requires the last bulance sheot statement before Closing.]

TSEDRAT.5 51
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Schedule 8.4
Chapters Pre-Closing Confirmations from Government Auathorities
[Chapters shall have obtained documeniation or other evidence reasonably sulisfactory to

Chapters that the Parties have received all thuse Approvals and Permies set forth on Schedule

84

52
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Schedulc 9.4

Hospice East Bay Pre-Closing Confirmations from Government Authorities

. Change ol ownership filings with the California Department of Public Health and the
Centers for Medtcare and Medicaid Services.
. Waiver or approval by California Attorney General
. Material change transaction filing with the California Office of Ileaith Care
Affordabiliry
. Notice to Community Health Acoreditation Partner
33

TA440324.4
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DISCLOSURE SCHEDULES OF CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC.
TO AFFILIATION AGREEMENT
by and between
CHAPTERS HEALTII SYSTEM, INC.
and
EAST BAY INTEGRATED CARE, INC.,
d/b/a HOSPICE EAST BAY

as of October 2, 2024



CHAPTERS DRAFT 10/2/24

THESE DISCLOSURE SCHEDULES (these “Disclosure Schedules™) have been
prepared in connection with the execution and delivery of the Affiliation Agreement, dated as of
October 2, 2024 (the “Agreement™), by and between Chapters Health System, Inc., a Florida not
tor profit corporation (*“Chapters™) and East Bay Integrated Care, Inc, d/b/a Hospice East Bay, a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation {“Hospice East Bay™). Chapters and Hospice East
Bay are sometimes referred o individually in these Disclosure Schedules as a “Party” and
collectively as the “Parties.” Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in these Disclosure
Schedules have the respective meanings assigned to them in the Agrcement.

These Disclosure Schedules are arranged according to the numbered sections contained in
the Agreement, and the disclosure in any section of these Disclosure Schedules shall qualify (a)
the corresponding section of the Agreement and ¢h) all other sections of the Agrecment to which
such disclosure may apply, so long as application to such section 18 reasonably uppuarent from such
disclosure.

Nothing in these Disclosure Schedules constitutes an admission of any liabildy or
obligation ol either Party to any third party, nor an admission of any liability or obligation to any
third party against the interests of ither Party. In disclosing this information, the Parttes do nof
walve any atcorney-client privilege associated with any such information or any protection
afforded by the “work product doctrine™ with respect to any of the matters disclosed or discussed
mn these Disclosure Schedules.

Headings have been inserted on Sections of these Disclosure Schedules [or the convemcence
of relercuce only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of any of the provisions of
the Agreement or these Disclosure Schedules. Any attachments to these Disclosure Schedules
shall be decmed incorporated by refercnce into these Disclosure Schedules in their entirety.



CHAPTERS DRAFT 10/2/24

SCIHIEDULE 5.2(b)

CHAPTLERS APPROVALS AND PERMITS

Change of ownership filings with the California Department of Public Health and the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services.

Watver or approval by California Attorney General

Material change transaction filing with the California Office of Health Care
Affordability
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SCHEDULE 5.4(a)

CHAPTERS HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Chapters Health System, Inc. and Affiliates Consolidated Financial Statcments dated
December 31, 2023 and 2022,

Chapters Health System, In¢, and AlHiliates Unaudited Balance Sheet dated no more than
60 days prior to October 2, 2024,

{Copies of the above are attached to this Schedule 3.4(a})



CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC, AND AFFILIATES

Temple Taerrace, Florida

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dacember 31, 2023 and 2022



11 Cal. Code Reg. Section 999.5(dW{11){(E)

Copies of each Proposal received by the applicant from any potential transferec

suggesting the terms of a potential transfer of applicant’s health facilities or
facilities that provide similar health care, and any analysis of each such Proposat




11 Cal. Code Reg. Section 999.5¢d){(11)(F)

The applicant’s prior two annual audited financial statemenis, the applicant's

most current unaudited financial sialement. business projection data and current
capital assel valuation data.

Altached to this Section are copics of the following (Inancial statements for Hospice
Fast Bay:

. A copy of the Unaudited Mnancial statements dated Scplember 2024
. A copy of the Audited financial staiements for 2023

» A copy of the Audited (nancial statements for 2022



Hospice East Bay
Finance Committee

September 2024




Financial Overview

+ Consolidated Clinical Operations revenue continues ta be below budget by $311k (Sepj and
$739k YTD due to low admissions and lower than budgeted ¢ensus.

*  Paositive trends:

-

S

ADC in October MTD is showing improvement {193 vs 183 end of September)

2 admissions nurses wera hired in September - we now have 4 additional admission capacity per day,
5 days out of the week.

Retail Shoppes had a favorable month, with Sales exceeding budget by $20k and Labor below budget
by $10k. Retail added $73k to our Consolidated Qperating Income for the month.

Bruns continue to get more visibility in the community. If it was not for the higher than usual write off
in Sep [see note on page 3}, Bruns would have outperformed in revenue for the month.

We are seeing Medicare payments for the ADRs starting to come through. So farin October, we have
received 50K for 2020 & 2021 ¢laims.




Clinical Operations Summary
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Non-Clinical and Total HEB Summary
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Cash Flow
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Baiance Sheet
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors

East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
dba Hospice of the East Bay

Pleasant Hill, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of East Bay Integrated Care, Inc. dba Hospice of the East Bay
{Organization), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related
statements of operations, changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the reiated notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in alf material respects, the
financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its
operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America {GAAS). Our respensibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and approgpriate to provide a basis for our audit epinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
arror,

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, cansidered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability ta
continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financiaf statements are available to be
issued.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financiol Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditer’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absclute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting frem error, as fraud may inveolve colflusion, forgery,
intenticnal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In perferming an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

¢ Exercise professicnal judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are sppropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, no such apinion is
expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantia| doubt ahout the Organization’s ability to continue as 3 going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

é‘o/éﬁzc/% Les”

Fargo, North Dakota
May 21, 2024



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Balance Sheets
December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 2,980,962 S 2,814,765
Patient accounts receivable, net 4,559,962 4,210,407
Interest and dividends receivable 114,784 119,451
Prepaid expenses and other 607,697 470,627
Total current assets 2,263,405 7,615,250
Moncurrent Assets
Beneficial interest in charitable trust 208,013 169,460
Investments 27,605,464 25,854,128
Property and equipment, net 7,124,893 7,364,542
Right of use assets - operating 2,097,652 2,172,761
Depasits 308,124 221,832
Total noncurrent assets 37,344,246 35,782,723
Total assets S 45,607,651 S 43,397,973

See Notes to Financial Statements 3



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Line of credit 3 - 5 338,508
Accounts payable 727,729 720,801
Accrued expenses 1,636,514 1,807,546
Funds held for others 4,851 5,078
Operating lease liability 632,804 703,555
Total current liabilities 3,001,898 3,575,488
Moncurrent Liabilities
Operating lease liability, net of current portion 1,493,486 1,493,548
Total liabilities 4,495 384 5,069,136
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 39,459,039 36,737,660
With donar restrictions 1,653,228 1,591,177
Total net assets 41,112,267 38,328,837
Total liabilities and net assets § 45,607,651 S 43,397,973

See Notes to Financial Statements 4



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Statements of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

Revenue, Gains, and Other Support Without Donor Restrictions

Patient service revenue

See Notes to Financial Statements

S 27,745,652

$ 28,777,320

Retail revenue 3,188,288 3,242,546
Special events, nat 156,452 176,983
Other income 152 42
Net assets released from restriction for operaticns 311,049 246,040
Tota! revenues, gains, and other suppart 31,401,593 32,442,931
Expenses
Salaries and benefits 22,817,805 23,781,514
Contract labor and services 2,442 545 2,473,098
Occupancy 2,170,873 2,204,635
Medical supplies and equipment 1,211,893 1,404,104
Other expenses 887,489 845,827
Pharmacy, therapies, hospital and laboratory 794,631 824,570
Professional fees 959,269 556,401
Depreciation 604,512 553,140
Inpatient facility 251,535 242,834
Patient related transportation 228,052 268,350
Genaral liability insurance 291,725 233,367
Printing and office supplies 159,969 183,106
Education 58,568 123,070
Total expenses 32,878,866 33,694,017
Operating Loss {1,477,273) {1,251,086)
QOtherincome {Expense)
Rental income 17,971 63,029
Investment income {loss} 3,346,371 {2,316,909)
Unrestricted contributions and grants 834,310 1,050,147
Total ather income, net 4,198,652 {1,203,733)
Revenues in Excess of {Less Than} Expenszes and Change
in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions S 2,721,379 5 {2,454,819)




East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2022

2023 2022
Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions
Revenues in excess of {less than) expenses and
change in net assets without donor restrictions S 2,721,379 S (2,454,819)
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions
Contributians restricted by donors 291,40% 188,023
Change in beneficial interest in charitable trust 38,553 {41,667}
Invastment income (lass) 43,142 (36,020}
MNet assets released from restrictions {311,049) (246,040)
Change in net assets with donor restrictions 62,051 (135,704)
Change in Net Assets 2,783,430 (2,580,523}
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 38,328,837 40,919,360
Net Assets, End of Year S 41,112,267 $ 138,328,837

See Notes to Financial Statements &



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.

Statements of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2023

Salaries and Benefits

Contract Lahor and Services

Qeocupancy

Medical Supplies and Equipment

Other Expenses

Pharmacy Therapies, Hospital
and laboratory

Professional Fees

Depreciation

Inpatient Facility

Fatient Related Transpartation

General Liahility Insurance

Printing and Office Sup plies

Education

Total expenses

See Notes to Financial Slatermenty

Program Supporting
Services Services
General and
Haspice Care Bruns Administrative Fundraising Retail Total

$ 14,380,883 & 1733883 5 4588281 % 488,561 % 1,626,191 5 22 817,205
1,924,764 161,870 355,911 - 2,442,545
202,140 - 807 811 - 1,160,922 2,170,873
1,211,853 . - - - 1,211,853
250,869 140 454 764 53,522 117,794 587,489
794,631 - - - - 794,631
84,207 - 874,862 - - 959,269
123,294 50,899 184,211 - 46,108 604,512
1,964 249,571 - - - 251,535
225,318 2,734 - - - 228,052
686 - 291,039 - - 291,725
50,674 - 72,445 18,760 18,050 159,969
32,323 - 26,079 166 - 58,568
5 15,283,746 5 2,199,103 [ 7,855,503 3 571,409 § 2,965,105 S 32,273,866




East Bay Integrated Care, inc.

Statements of Funclional Expences
Year Ended December 31, 2022

Salaries and Banefits

Contract Labor and Services

Qccupancy

Medical Supplies and Equipment

Other Expenses

Pharmacy Therapies, Hospital
and laboratory

Professional fees

Depreciation

Inpatient Facility

Paticnl Related Transportation

General Liabity Insurance

Printing and Office Supplies

Education

Total expenses

See Notes to Financial Statements

Program Supporting
Services Services
General and
Hospice Care Bruns Administrative Fundraising Retail Total

$ 15,794,250 S 1,890,793 ) 4015063 5 433,520 § 1,647,838 % 23,781,514
2,126,547 68,710 277,842 - - 2,473,094
178,662 - 900,565 - 1,125,408 2,204,635
1,404,104 - . - 1,404,104
216,164 140 462,057 62,449 105,017 845,327
824,570 - - - - 824570
108,446 - 447,055 - 556,401
62,840 50,755 401 486 - 28,059 553,140
3,207 239,627 - - 242 834
260,295 8,052 - - 268,350
636 - 231,487 - 1,184 233,367
78,195 - 61,609 26073 17,229 183,106
47,228 . 75,347 - 435 123,070
S 21,105,197 5 2,288,077 5 6,873,411 s 522,042 5 2,935,290 $ 33,604,017




East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Cperating Activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash from operating activities
Net realized and unrealized {gain} loss on investments
Depreciation
Gain on disposal of capital asset
Change in beneficial interest of charitable trust
Changes in assets and liabilfities
Patient accounts receivable, net
Interest and dividends receivable
Cantributions receivable
Prepatd expenses and other
Deposits
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Funds held for others
Operating lease assets and liabilities
Unearned revenue

Met Cash from Operating Activities
tnvesting Activities
Purchases of investments
Donated securities
Proceeds from sales of investments
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment

Net Cash from {used for} Investing Activities

Financing Activity
Increase (decrease) in line of credit

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-cash Investing and Financing Activity

Lease liabilities arising from obtaining right of use assets

5ee Notes to Financial Statements

2023 2022
$ 2,783,430 $ (2,590,523
(2,504,662} 3,119,161
604,512 553,140
{823} -
(38,553} 41,667
{349,555) {709,362)
3,667 {19,715}
- 100,000
(137,070} 25,469
(86,292} 25,533
6,928 50,808
{171,032) {120,870}
(227) (976)
4,196 24,442
- (21,874)
115,519 476,900
(11,051,880} (8,982,839)
(54,245) (75,134)
11,859,451 6,387,799
{390,865) (767,589)
26,725 -
389,186 (3,437,763}
(338,508) 338,508
166,197 (2,622,355)
2,814,765 5,437,120
$ 2,980,962 $ 2,814,765
4 83,246 5 -
9



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 1- Nature of Operations
Organization

East Bay Integrated Care, Inc. {dba Hospice of the East Bay) [Organization) is a California nonprofit organization
which provides hospice care tc terminally ill patients and their families throughout Contra Costa, Alameda and
Solana Counties. The Organization also operates a state licensed hospice inpatient facility in the East Bay, The
Bruns House. Patient care services are usuaily covered by Medicare, Medi-Cal, and private insurance payors;
however, not every patient accepted for care is eligible for insurance coverage, and not every service provided is
included under such coverage. Medicaily eligible patients are accepted regardiess of type of iliness, age, color,
sex, religious affiliation, or national origin. The Organization has specialty programs such as a community-based
Palliative Care Program, the Give Me a Break respite program, the Bridge Program, the Tuck-In Program, We
Honar Veterans Program, and the Music and Memory Program which has board-certified music therapists.

The Organization provides funding for charity care and other programs. The Organization receives support from
grants, community donations and fundraising activities and annual special events. In addition, the Organization
operates six thrift stores in Contra Costa County, which sell donated used clothing and household goods. The
related sales and operating expenses are reported a3 Retail Operations in the statements of operations. Retail
sales also include estate and vehicle sale proceeds.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting

The basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in
the financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to the timing of measurement made, regardiess of the
measurement focus applied. The accompanying financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as performance obligations are satisfied and expenses
are recognized when incurred.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) ASC 958 and ASC 954. Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
or absence of donor or grantor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified
and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — The Organization reports cantributions that are not subject to donor-

imposed restrictions as net assets without donor restrictions. Net assets without donor restrictions may be
designated for specific purposes by action of the Beard of Directors.

10



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Maotes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2022

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions — The Organization reports contributions as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor-imposed restrictions that can be met either by passage of time, or
other events specified by the donor. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is,
when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the rescurce was restricted has
been fulfilled, ar hoth.

Income Taxes

The Organization is organized as a Califarnia nonprofit corporation and has been recognized by the Internal
Revenue Service {IRS} as exempt from Federat and State income tax under Internal Revenue Code Section
501{c){3} and Section 23701({d} of the Revenue and Taxation Code. The Organization is annually required to file a
Return of Crganization Exempt from Income Tax {Form 990) with the IRS. In addition, the Organization is subject
to income tax on net income that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose.
The Organization has determined it is not subject to unrelated business income tax and has not filed and Exempt
Organization Business Income Tax Return {Form $90-T) with the iRS.

The Organizaticn believes that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken affecting its annual filing
requirements, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial
statements. The Qrganization would recognize future accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax
liabilities in income tax expense if such interest and penalties are incurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparaticn of financial statements in conformity with accounting principtes generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make astimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the reporting date and revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing programs and activities have been summarized an a functional basis in the accompanying
statements of functiona! expenses, which presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function.
Expenses are charged directly to program services or supparting services categories based on direct expenses
incurred. An expense not directly chargeable to a functional expense category is allocated based on personnal
activity, square footage and other criteria. The expenses that are allocated based on sguare footage include
occupancy and depreciation. Salaries and benefits, insurance, and other, are allocated based on estimated time

and effort.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid investments with initial
maturities of three months ar less to be cash equivalents.

11



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient receivables are uncollateralized patient and third-party payor obligations. The Organization does not
charge interest on unpaid patient receivables. Payments of patient receivables are allocated to the specific
claims identified in the remittance advice, or if unspecified, on self-paid claims are applied to the earliest unpaid
claim.

Patient accounts receivables are reduced by an allowance for implicit and explicit price concessions. In
evaluating the collectability of accounts recefvable, the Organization analyzes accounts for adverse changes in 3
patient’s or third-party’s ability to pay that may have occurred subsequent to recognition. Management
regularly reviews specific data about receivable balances and its past history with similar cases to estimate the
appropriate allowance for implicit and explicit price concessions.

The Organization’s patient receivable balance as of January 1, 2022 was $3,501,045.
Beneficial interest in Charitable Trusts Held by Others

The Organization has been named as an irrevocable beneficiary of a charitable trust held and administered by an
independent trustee. This trust was created independently by donors and are administered by outside agents
designated by the donors. The Organization has neither possession nor control over the assets of the trust. At
the date the Organization receives notice of a beneficiai interest, a contribution with donar restrictions is
recorded in the statement of changes in net assets and a beneficial interest in charitable trusts held by others is
recorded in the balance sheet at fair value using present value techniques and risk-adjusted discount rates
designed to reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the expected distributions to be
received under the agreement. Thereafter, beneficial interests in the trusts are reparted at fair value in the
balance sheet, which changes in fair value recognized in the statement of changes in net assets.

Upon receipt of trust distributions or expenditures, or both, in satisfaction of the donor-restricted purpose, if
any, net assets with donor-imposed time or purpose restrictions are released to net assets without donor
restrictions. Trust distributions with donor-imposed restrictions that are perpetual in nature are transferred to
the endowment, in which case, net assets with donor-restrictions are not released.

Investments

Investments in equity securities with readily determinakle fair values and all investments in debt securities, are
reported at their fair values in the statement of financial positicn. The fair values are based on quoted market
prices. Donated investments are recorded at the market value on the date of donation. Unrealized gains and
losses are included in the performance indicator. Investment income is reported net of related investment
expenses.

12



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions in excess of $5,000 are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the
date of donation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets ranging from 1 to 25 years. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related
depreciation is removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss in inciuded in the statements of
operations. Costs of maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective
assets are expensed currently.

The estimates useful lives of property and equipment are as fallows:

Land improvements 5-20 years
Buildings 25 years
Building improvements 1-20 years
Office furniture and eguipment 1-10 years
Vehicles 1-5 years

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as additions to net assets without
danor restrictions and are excluded from the performance indicator, unless explicit donor stipulations specify
how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of lang-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the
assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are
reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must
be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reperted when donated or when acquired leng-lived assets
are placed in service.

The Crganization considers whather indicatars of impairment are present and performs the necessary analysis
to determine if the carrying values of assets are appropriate. No impairment was identified for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Patient Services Recognition of Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Organization
expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from patients, third-party
payars {including health insurers and government programs), and others and includes variable consideration for
retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews and investigations. Generally, the
Organization bills the patients and third-party payors at the end of the month fer services provided. Revenue s
recognized as performance obligations are satisfied.

13



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Notes ta Financial Statements
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the Qrganization,
Revenue for performance obligaticns satisfied over time is recognized based on actual charges incurred in
refation to totai expected (or actual) charges. The Organization believes that this method pravides a faithful
depiction of the transfer of services over the term of the performance obligation based on the inputs needed to
satisfy the obligation. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to patients recaiving hospice,
palliative, or primary care services. The Organization measures the perfarmance obligation through visits to the
patient up to the point when it is no langer required to provide services to that patient. Revenue for
perfarmance obligations satisfied at a point in time is recognized when goods or services are provided, and the
Organization does not believe it is required to provide additional goods or services to the patient,

The Organization determines the transaction price based on standard charges for gaods and services provided,
reduced by contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors, discounts provided to uninsured patients in
accordance with the Organization’s policy, and/or implicit price concessions provided to uninsured patients. The
Organization determines its estimates of contractual adjustments and discounts based an contractuat
agreements, its discount policies and historical experience. The Organization determines its estimate of implicit
price concessions based on its historical collection experience with this class of patients.

Consistent with the Organization’s mission, care is provided to patients regardless of their ability to pay.
Therefore, the Organization has determined it has provided implicit price concessions to uninsured patients and
patients with ather uninsured balances {for example, copays and deductibles). The implicit price concessions
included in estimating the transaction price represent the difference between amounts billed to patients and
the amounts the Organization expects to collect based an its collection history.

Charity Care

The Organization has a policy for providing necessary care to hospice and palliative care patients regardless of
third-party reimbursement status. The Organization relies on contributions and grants fram the community to
ensure that charity care services continue to be offered. The Organization provided $265,287 and 317,853 in
charity care support based on charges forgone for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 at an
estimated cost of $269,000 and 5313,000, respectively. The estimated cost of providing these services was
calcuiated by multiplying the ratio of cost to gross charges for the Organization by the gross uncompensated
charges associated with providing charity to care to its patients.

Retail Revenue Recognition

For performance obligations related to the sale of items at the Organization’s thrift shoppes, control transfers to
the customer at a paint in time. The Organizaticn records revenue for retail sales at the point of sale when
delivery to the customer occurred.

Performance Indicator

Revenues in excess of {less than) expenses is the performance indicator and excludes contributions of long-lived
assets, which includes assets acquired using contributians which were restricted by donors.

14



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Contributions and Grants

The Organization reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets without donor restrictions
if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished)
in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported
as increases in net assets with doner restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and
reported in the statements of changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.

Contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, an uncenditional promise to give, or
notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the
conditions on which they depend have been substantially met.

In-kind Contributions

'n-kind contributicons include donated professianal services, donated eguipment, and other in-kind contributions
which are recorded at the respective fair values of the goods and services received. In addition to in-kind
contributions, volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration, thrift
shoppes, and fundraising and development activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the value
of these contributed services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by generally accepted
accounting principles, Contributed geods are recorded at fair value at the date of donation.

Ali in-kind contributians recelved during the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were unrestricted.

Advertising Costs

Costs incurred for producing and distributing advertising are expensed as incurred. The Organization incurred
$207,833 and $245,401 for advertising costs for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash, money market accounts and investments with financial
institutions believed to be ¢creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits or include
uninsured investments in money market mutual funds. To data, the Organization has not experienced losses in
any of these accounts. Although the fair values of investments are subject to fluctuation on a year-to-year basis,
management believes that the investment policies and guidelines are prudent for the long-term welfare of the

organization.

The QOrganization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which exceed federally insurad limits. Accounts are
guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per depositor, per insured bank,
for each account ownership category. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Organization has approximately
52,088,000 and 52,688,000, respectively, in excess of FDIC-insured limits.
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Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through May 21, 2024, the date the financial statements were availahle
to be issued.
Note 3- Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without doner or other restrictions Iimiting their use,
within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:

2023 2022
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 2,980,962 S 2,814,765
Patient Accounts Receivable, Net 4,559,962 4,210,407
Total S 7,540,924 S 7,025,172

The Crganization’s endowment fund consists of one donar-restricted endowment. Income from the donor-
restricted endowment is restricted for specific purpose of the Bruns House ongoing cperations on an annual
hasis. Donor-restricted endowment funds are not available for general expenditures.

As part of the Organization’s liquidity management plan, the Crganization retains at teast $2,300,000in an
operating account. On a moanthly basis, cash in excess of this amount is transferred to an investments account.
Cash is invested in Fixed Income Mutual Funds, Preferred Stocks, Domestic and Foreign based Equities and
Mutual Funds and Common Stock. As the Organization's governance does not intend 1o use its investments,
including the interest and dividends receivable, for general expenditure within one year of the halance sheet
date, investments are not included in the above table, but could be made available as needed.

Note 4 - Patient Service Revenue

The Organization has agreements with third-party payors that provide for prospectively determined daily rates.
A summary of the payment arrangaments with major third-party payors is as follows:

Medicare and Medicaid — The Organization’s services provided to Medicare and Medicaid program beneficiaries

are paid at prospectively determined rates. The rates vary according to level of care and where the patient lives.
These rates are not subject to retroactive adjustments.
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The Organization has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers and
other organizations. The payment methodology under these agreements is similar to Medicare and Medicaid,
although the amounts are different.

Concentrations of net revenues by major payor accounted for the following percentage of the Organization’s
patient service revenues for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Medicare 90% 91%
Medi-Cal 3% 3%
Commaercial insurance 5% 5%
Private Pay 2% 1%
100% 100%

Generally, patients whe are covered by third-party payors are responsible for related deductibles and
cotnsurance, which vary in amount. The Organization alse provides services to uninsured patients, and offers
those uninsured patients a discount, either by policy or law, from standard charges. The Organization estimates
the transaction price for patients with deductibles and coinsurance and from those wha are uninsured based on
historical experience and current market conditions. The initial estimate of the transaction price is determined
by reducing the standard charge by any centractual adjustments, discounts and implicit price concessions hased
on historical collection experience. Subsequent changes to the estimate of the transaction price are generally
recorded as adjustments to patient service revenue in the period of the change. The ability to estimate the
collectability of uninsured and other self-pay patients is contingent on the patient’s ability or willingness to pay
for the services provided. Subsequent changes that are determined to be the result of an adverse change in the

patient’s ability to pay are recorded as credit loss expense.

The nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by several factors that the
Organization considers in its recognition of revenue. Foilowing are some of the factors cansidered;

« Payors (for example, Medicare, Medicaid, managed care or other insurance, patient) have different
reimbursement/payment methodologies.
» Length of the patient’s service/episade of care.

¢ Geography of the service lacation.
» The Organization’s line of businesses that provided the service {for example, hospice, palliative, inpatient,

etc.).

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Organization recognized patient revenue of 527,745,652
and $28,777,320 from services and goods provided over time.
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Note 5- Property and Equipment

2023 2022
Land S 3,875,000 S 3,875,000
Land Improvements 219,244 211,314
Building 4,025,008 4,025,008
Building Improvements 1,058,223 1,014,213
Office Furniture, Equipment, and Software 2,307,602 2,032,235
Vehicles 795,068 799,877
Construction in Progress 108,526 74,595
Gross Property and Equipment 12,388,671 12,032,342
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (5,263,678} (4,667,800)
Net property and equipment S 7,124,993 5 7,364,542
Depreciation expense charged to operations was $604,512 in 2023 and $553,140 in 2022,
Note 6- Investments
Investments consist of the foliowing at December 31, 2023 and 2022:
2023 2022

Fixed Income & 15,653,838 S 16,192,728
Equity Securities 8,826,914 7,335,508
Mutual Funds-Equities 3,124,712 2,324,366
Warrants and Rights - 1,526

Total investments S 27,605,464 S 25,854,128

Investments are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk
associated with certain investment securities, it is at least possible that changes in risks in the near term could
materially affect account balances and the amounts reported in the accompanying financial statements.
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Investment income consisted of the following for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Investment Income
Interest and dividend income, net S 893,235 5 843,774
Realized loss {86,858) (11,317)
Unrealized gain {loss) 2,591,520 (3,108,339)
Investment fees (51,526} (41,027)

S 3,346,371 S {2,316,909)

Changes in Net Assets with Donor Restrictions
Interest and dividend income, net 5 43,142 5 {36,020)

Note 7 - Fair Value Measurements

The Organization reports certain assets and liabilities at fair value in the financial statements. Fair value is the
price that would be received when selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the
principal, or most advantageous, market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. Inputs used to
determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk, Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are
inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that
reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing
the asset or liability based on the best information available.

A three- tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

Level 1 ~ Quoted prices {unadjusted] in active markets for identical assets or Rabilities that can be accessed at
the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
guoted prices for identical or similar assets or lizhilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than guoted
prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 — Unchservable inputs far the asset or liability. In these situations, inputs are developed using the best
informaticn available in the circumstances.
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In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset ar a liabilfty might be categorized within
different levels of the fair vatue hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is categorized in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest input leve! that is significant to the entire
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the entire measurement requirement judgment
taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is
based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and does not necessarily correspond to an assessment of the
quality, risk or liquidity profile of the asset of liability.

A portion of the investments are classified within Level 1 because they comprise various mutual funds and
equities with readily determinable fair values based on daily redemption values. Fixed income securities are
valued by the custedians of the securities using gricing models based on credit quality, time to maturity, stated
interest rates and market-rate assumptions, and are classified within Level 2. The fair value of the beneficial
interest tn the charitable trust is determined by using present value techniques and risk-adjusted discount rates
designed to reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the underlying assets and are
based on the fair values of the trust investments as reported by the trustee.

The following table presents the balances of the assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December
31, 2023;

Fair Value Measurements at Repart Date Using

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets far Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
{Level 1) (Level 2] {Level 3) Total
Investments
Fixed income 5 - 5 15,653,833 ] - S 15,653,838
Equity securities 8,826,914 - - 8,826,514
Mutual funds-equities 3,124,712 - - 3,124,712
5 11,851,626 % 15,653,838 5 - $ 27,605,464
Beneficial interest in
charitable trust S - 5 208,013 S - g 208,013
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The following takble presents the halances of the assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December
31, 2022.

Fair Value Measurements at Report Date Using

CQuoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets fnputs Inputs
fLevel 1) {Level 2} {Level 3) Tatal
Investments
Fixed income 5 - 5 16,192,728 S - $ 16,192,728
Equity securities 7,335,508 - - 7,335,508
Mutual funds-equities 2,324,360 - - 2,324,366
Publicly traded other 1,526 - - 1,526
S 9,661,400 S 16,192,728 5 - § 25,854,128
Beneficial interest in
charitable trust 3 - 5 169,460 5 - 5 163,460

Note 8 - Leases

The Organization ieases certain office space and thrift shops for various terms under long-term, non-cancelable
operating lease agreaments. The leases expire at various dates through 2030 and provide for renewal options
ranging from three to five years. The Organization included in the determination of the right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities any renewal aptions when the aptions are reasonably certain to be exercised. The leases provide
for increases in future minimum annual rental payments based on defined increases in the Consumer Price
Index, subject ta certain minimum or maximum increases. Also, the agreements generally require the Company
to pay real estate taxes, insurance, and repairs.

The weighted-average discount rate is based on the discount rate implicit in the lease. If the implicit rate is not
readily determinable from the lease, the Organization estimates an applicabie incremental borrowing rate. The
incremental borrowing rate is estimated using the Organization's applicable barrowing rates and the contractual
lease term.

The Organization has elected the short-term lease exemption for all leases with a term of 12 months or less for

both existing and ongoing operating leases to not recognize the asset and liability for these leases, Lease
payments for short-term leases are recognized on a straight-line basis.
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Total lease costs far the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

2023 2022

Operating Lease Cost 5 862,758 S 838,669

The following table summarizes the supplemental cash flow information for the years ended December 31, 2023
and 2022:

2023 2022
Cash Paid for Amounts Included in The Measurement of Lease Liabilities
Cperating cash flows from operating {eases S 858,562 5 314,227
Right of Use Assets Obtained in Exchange for Lease Liabilities
Operating leases s 83,246 5 -

The following summarizes the weighted-average remaining lease term and weight-average discount rate;

2023 2022
Weighted-Average Remaining Lease Term:
Operating leases 3.38 years 4.26 years
Weighted-Average Discount Rate:
Operating leases 4,24% 4.31%

The future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases with terms greater than ane year
are listed below as of December 31, 2023:

Amount

2024 $ 705,906
2025 606,278
2026 399,733
2027 237,466
2028 177,698
Thereafter 181,556
Total Lease Payments 2,308,637

Less interest f182,347)
Present Value of Lease Liahilities S 2,126,290
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Note 8- Line of Credit

The Organization has a bank line of credit for $4,000,000. The line of credit is secured by the Organization’s
investment portfolio. Interest is charged on the outstanding balance at the prime rate less 1.75%. The prime rate
at December 31, 2023 was 8.0% so the interest rate on the line of credit was 6.25%. There was a balance of 50
and $338,508 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The line of credit expires July 15, 2025,

The Organization has a second bank line of credit for 5500,000. The line of credit is secured by real property.

interest is charged on the outstanding balance at 2.538% above the SOFR {Secured Overnight Financing Rate)
index. There were no cutstanding balances at December 31, 2023 and 2022. The line of credit does not have a

pre-set maturity date.

MNote 10 - Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes or periods:

2023 2022
Subject to Expenditure for Specified Purpose
Respite care S 177,395 5 173,108
Give me a break 507,499 515,027
Music and memory 20,952 27,127
Yeterans program 1,000 -
Earnings an restricted funds to be aliocated to
specific purposes 238,369 206,455
945,215 921,717
Subject ta The Passage of Time
Beneficial interest in charitable trust : 208,013 169,460
Endowments
Held in perpetuity, the income from which is
expendable to support Bruns House 500,000 500,000

S 1,653,228 $ 1,591,177

During 2023 and 2022, net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenditures satistying the
restricted purposes and the expiration of time restrictions in the amounts of $311,048 and $246,040 as detailed
betow. These amounts are included in net assets released from restrictions in the accompanying financial

statements.
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2023 2022

Satisfaction of Purpose Restrictions
Volunteer Program Donations S 2,758 4,750
Bereavement - General 1,589 5,621
Bruns House general 171,334 824,480
Childrens Program 550 808
Education 309 957
Rossmoor Respite Care donation - 1,728
Give me a Break Respite 9,203 10,895
Spiritual Care 412 204
Patient Care 6,163 9,812
Palfiative Care 54,872 21,295
Music & Memary 5378 4,255
Music Therapist 57,481 1,135
Satisfaction of Time Restriction - 100,000
Total 5 314,049 5 246,040

Note 11 - Endowment

The Organization’s endowment (the Endowment] consists of an individual fund, the Bruns House, established by
a donar to provide annual funding for the ongoing expenses at Bruns House. The Qrpanization detarmined the
net assets forming the Bruns House Fund is legally restricted as an endowment fund and should therefore be
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. The Organization’s Board of Directors has interpreted the
California Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act {UPMIFA) as reguiring the preservation of
the fair vaiue of the original gift as of the date of the denor-restricted endowment funds, unless there are
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no such donor
stipulations. As a resuit of this interpretation, the Organization retains in perpetuity {a) the original value of
initial and subsequent gift amounts and {b) any accumulations to the endowment made in accordance with the
directicn of the applicable danor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added.

The following factors are considered in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds:

s The duration and preservation of the fund.

» The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund.
= General economic canditians.

» The possible effect of inflation and deflation.

* The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments.
s Other resources of the Organization.

s The investmeant policies of the Organization.
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As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Grganization had the following endowment net asset composition by
type of fund:

Without Donor With Daonor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
December 31, 2023
Donor-Restricted Endowment Funds
Original donor-restricted gift amounts
required to be maintained in perpetuity 5 - 5 500,000 s 500,000
Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
December 31, 2022
Donor-Restricted Endowment Funds
Criginal donor-restricted gift amounts
3 - S 500,000 5 500,000

From time to time, certain donor-restricted endowment funds may have fair values less than the amount
required to be maintained by donors or by law {underwater endowments). The Organization has interpreted
UPMIFA to permit spending from underwater endowments in accordance with prudent measures required by
law. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the were no underwater endowments.

Investment and Spending Policies

The Organization has adopted an investment policy that attempts to maximize total return consistent with
acceptable levels of risk, which applies to all investments, including the endowment fund. Endowment assets are
invested in a well-diversified asset mix, which includes equity and debt securities, in order to minimize the risk of
large losses. A well-qualified investment advisor maintains the portfolio; efforts are made to control risk and are
evaluated regularly to ensure that the risk assumed is commensurate with the given objectives.

Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Without Doncr With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
Balance as of December 31, 2021 3 - 5 500,000 S 500,000
Investment income - -
Balance as of December 31, 2022 - 500,000 500,006
Investment income - - -
Balance as of December 31, 2023 8 - S 500,000 3 500,000
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Note 12 - Fund Development

Fund development activities reported individually in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework in the statements of operations are summarized as follows for the years ended December 31, 2023
and 2022:

Without Donor with Denor
December 31, 2023 Restrictians Restrictions Total
Contributions and Grants 5 834,310 5 291,405 S 1,125,715
Special Events, Net 156,452 - 156,452
Met Assets Released from Restriction 211,049 {311,049] -
$ 1,301,811 5 (19,644) S 1,282,167
Without Donor With Donor
Decembear 31, 2022 Restrictions Restrictions Total
Contributions and Grants S 1,050,147 S 188,023 S 1,238,170
Special Events, Net 176,983 - 176,983
Net Assets Released from Restriction 246,040 [246,040) -

S 1,473,170 5 {58,017} S 1,415,153

Note 13 - Retirement Plan {403b Plan)

The Organization provides a salary deferral plan for all eligible employees. Upon compieting 1,000 hours of
service, the employer matches up te 52,000 annually per employee. The employer matching contributions to the
plan were $281,634 and $288,272 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Note 14 - Concentration of Credit Risk
The Organization grants credit without colfateral to its patients, most of wham are insured under third-party

payer agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payers at December 31, 2023 and 2022
was as follows:

2023 2022
Medicare 76% B2%
Medi-Cal 18% 8%
Other Third-Party Payors 5% 9%
Patients 1% 1%
100% 100%
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Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies
State and Federal Revenue

The Organization receives patient services revenue from Federal and State funds for specific purposes that are
subject to review and audit by the governmental agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure
disallowances under terms of the payments from the Federal and State agencies, in the opinion of management,
any raquired reimbursements will not be material.

Litigations, Claims, and Disputes

The Organization is subject to the usual contingencies in the normal course of operations relating to the
performance of its tasks under its various programs. Management assesses the ultimate settlement of any
litigations, claims, and disputes in process in determining whether a liability should be recorded, or a disclosure
should be presented.

The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local governments.
Compliance with these laws and regulations, specifically those relating to Medicare and Medi-Cal program, can
be subject to government review and interpretations, as well as regulatory actions unknown and unasserted at
this time. Federal government activity with respect to investigations and aflegations concerning possible
violations of regulations by healthcare providers could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties,
as well as significant repayments of previously billed and collected revenues from patient services.

Paycheck Protection Program Loan {PPP)

Loans issued under the PPP were subject to good-faith certifications of the necessity of the loan reguest.
Borrowers with loans issued under the program in excess of 52 million are subject to review by the Small
Business Administration {SBA) for compliance with the program requirements. if the SBA determines that a
borrower lacked an adeguate basis for the loan or did not meet the program requirements, the loan wili not be
eligible for loan forgiveness and the SBA will seek repayment of the outstanding loan balance. As such, the
potential exists that the Organization may be deemed ineligible for loan forgiveness and be required to repay
the loan.

The Organization applied for and received loan forgiveness from the SBA on its PPP loan in 2021. In accordance
with PPP loan requirements, the Qrganization is required to maintain PPP loan files and certzin underlying
supporting documants for periods ranging from three to six years. The Organization is alsc reguired to permit
access to such files upen request by the SBA. Accordingly, there is potential the PPP loan could be subject to
further review by the SBA and that previously recognized forgiveness could be reversed based on the outcome

of this review.
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Note 16 - Risk Management

The Organization is exposed to various risks of loss in the ardinary course of business as a result of torts, theft
of, damage to, or destruction of assets, business interruption, allegations of medical malpractice {professional
iiability), natural disasters, injury, employee and officer errors and omissions, and employee workers’
compensation and medical claims. The Organization purchases commercial insurance coverage against risk of
loss due to errors and omissions, fiduciary liability, property damage and theft, pollution liability, and various
other insurabfe risks. Professianal liability coverage is on a claims-made basis with limits of $3 million per
occurrence subject to a 55 million aggregate limit.

The Organization is a member of BETA Healthcare Group (BETA) for warkers’ compensation coverage. BETA
provides coverage to hospitals, healthcare facilities and medical groups. BETA is a risk management joint powers
authority (JPA} formed pursuant to the California Government Code. The purpose of the JPA is to purchase and
administer workers’ compensation insurance for the poaling of self-insured losses and to purchase excess
insurance coverage whereby the risk of loss is mitigated by the IPA. BETA purchases workers’ compensation
insurance under 3 claims-made policy with limits of $2 million per occurrence. BETA also purchases excess
insurance coverage for claims in excess of $2 million up to statutory limits.

BETA members are assessed a contribution far each program in which they participate. Members may be
subject to additional supplemental assessments if it is determined that the contributions are insufficient.
Members may withdraw from BETA with thirty day written advance notice. BETA may cancel a membership for
faifure to implement loss control ar risk management recommendations upon a majority vote of the Board of
Directars and with sixty days written notice. Upan withdrawal or cancellation, 3 member shall not remain
subject to additional assessments for the program periods they have participated.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directars
East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Pleasant Hill, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of East Bay Integrated Care, Inc. {Crganization), which
romprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of
aperattons, changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
reiated notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the resuits of its
operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accolnting principies eeneraily accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

wWe ronducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America {GAAS). Cur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to gur audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur audit opinion,

Change in Acepunting Principle

As discussed in Mote 2 to the financial statements, the Organization has adopted the provisions of FASB
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 842, feases, as of fanuary 1, 2022 using the madified
retrospective approach with an adjustment at the beginning of the adoption period. Our opinion i not
madified with respect to this matter.

Vil tespien yiou, Jespires us. el cen 1
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Responsibifities of Management for the Financiol Statements

Management is respensible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is requirad tc evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial dcubt about the Organization’s ability to
continue as a going concern far cne year after the date that the financial statemeants are available to be
issited.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether tha financial statements as 2 whele
are free from materal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not ahsolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always
detect a materal misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstaterment
resuiting from fraud is higher than for ene resuliing from errar, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intenticnal omissicns, misrepresentations, or the averride of internai control. Misstatements are
censidered mmaterial if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they wouid
influence the judgment made by o reasonable user hased on the financial statements.

It performing an audit in accordance with CAAS, we:

»  Exercise professionad judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement af the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and gerform audit procedures resgonsive to those risks.
Such pracedures include examining, on a test basis, evidenre regarding the amounts and
disclostres in the financial statements.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriats in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinton on the effectiveness of the Qrganization's internal control. Accardingly, no such
oginion is expressed.

» Evaluate tne aporopriateness of accounting pelicies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by managerment, as well as evaiuate the overal;
presentation of the financial statements,

*  Conciude whether, in our judgment, thare are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantiat doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a
going ccneern for a reasonable period of time.



We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intarnal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Fargo, North Dakota
June 30, 2023



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Balance Sheets
December 31, 2022 and 2021

20212 2021
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 2,814,765 S 5,437,120
Patient accounts receivable, net 4,210,407 3,501,045
Interest and dividends receivable 119,451 99,736
Contributions receivable - 100,000
Prepaid expienses and other 470,627 496,096
Total current assets 7,615,250 9,633,997
Noncurrent Assets
Beneficial interest in charitabie trust 169,460 211,127
Investments 25,854,128 26,303,115
Property and equipment, net 7,364,542 , 7,150,093
Right-of-use asset, net 2,172,761 -
Deposits 221,832 247,365
Total noncurrent assets 35,782,723 33,911,700
Total assets S 43,397,973 S 43,545,697

See Notes to Financial Statements 4



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Balance Sheets
December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021
Liahilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable S 720,801 5 669,993
Line of credit 338,508 -
Accrued expanses 1,807,546 1,928,416
Funds held for others 5,078 6,054
Unearned revenue - 21,874
Qperating lease liability 703,555 -
Total current liabilities 3,575,488 2,626,337
Noncurrent Liabilities
Operating lease liability 1,493,648 -
Total liahilities 5,069,136 2,626,337
Met Assets
Without donor restrictions
Undesignated 36,737,660 39,192,479
With danor restrictions
Purpose restrictions 1,421,717 1,415,754
Time-restricted for future periods 169,460 311,127
Total net assets with donor restrictions 1,591,177 1,726,881
Total net assets 38,328,837 40,919,360
Total Habilities and net assets S 43,397,973 S 43,545,697

See Notes to Financial Statements 5



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Statements of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Revenue, Gains, and Other Support Without Donar Restrictions

Revenues in Excess of {Less Than} Expenses and Change

in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

See Notes to Financial Statements

Patient service revenue 5 28,777,320 5 30,683,590
Retail revenue 3,242,546 2,866,845
Special events, net 176,983 198,777
Contributions - Paycheck Protection Program Loan - 3,495,364
Other income 42 1,050
Net assets released from restriction for operations 246,040 196,557
Total revenues, gains, and other support 32,442,831 37,442,183
Expenses
Salaries and benefits 23,781,514 24,242 303
Contract labor and services 2,473,099 1,761,238
Occupancy 2,204,635 2,335,358
Medical supplies and equipment 1,404,104 1,408,572
Other expenses 845,827 285,293
Pharmacy, therapies, hospital and laboratory 824,570 769,955
Professional fees 556,401 396,609
Depreciation and amortization 553,140 509,753
Inpatient facility 242 834 224,542
Patient related transportation 268,350 294,170
Generatl liability insurance 233,367 177,100
Printing and office supplies 183,106 158,856
Education 123,070 48,683
Total expenses 33,684,017 33,212,432
Operating Income [Loss) {1,251,086) 4,229,751
Other Income {Expense)
Rental income 63,029 142,155
tnvestment income {2,316,909) 2,461,309
Unrestricted contributions and grants 1,050,147 1,043,265
Contributions - Provider Relief Funds - 654,382
Total cther income, net {1,203,733) 4,301,111

S (2,454,819)

5 8,530,862




Fast Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions
Revenues in excess of (less than) expenses and
change in net assets without donor restrictions

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions
Contributions restricted by donors
Change in beneficial interest in charitable trust
Ihvestment income
Met assets refeased from restrictions
Change in net assets with donor restrictions
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Met Assets, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

2022 2021

5 (2,454,819) 5 8,530,862

188,023 162,144
(41,667) 140,249
(36,020 40,114
{246,040 (196,557)
(135,704) 145,950
(2,590,523) 8,676,812
40,919,360 32,242,548

S 38,328,837 S 40,919,360




East Bay integrated Care, inc.
Staternents af Functional Expenses
Year Ended December 31, 2022

Program Supporting
Services Services
General and
Hospaee Care Bruns Adrministrative Fundraising Fetail Tatal
Salaries and henefits S 15,794,250 5 1,890,793 5 4,015,063 5 433,520 4 1,647,888 S 23,781,514
Contract labor and services 2,126,547 R, 710 277,842 - - 2,473,099
Occupancy 178,662 - 900,565 - 1,125,408 2,204,635
Medical supplies and equipment 1,404,104 . - B - 1,404,104
Other expenses 216,164 140 A62.057 E2,449 105,017 845,837
Pharmacy, therapies, hospital
and faboratory 824,570 - - - - 824,570
Professional fees 108,446 - 447,955 - - 556,401
Depreciatian 62,840 50,755 401,486 - 38,059 553,140
Inpatient facility 3,207 235,627 - - - 342,834
Patient related transportation 260,298 8,052 - : - 268,350
General liability insurance 686 - 231,487 - 1,154 233,367
Printing and office supplies 78,195 61,609 26,073 17,229 153,106
Lduration 47,228 - 75,347 495 123,070
| otal expenses 5 21,105,157 s 2,258,077 5 b,873411 5 522,042 S 2,535,290 % 33,694,017

See Notes to Ninancial Statements g



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Statements of Functiona: Expenses
Year Ended December 21, 2021

Frogram Supporting
Services Services
General and
Haspice Care Bruns Administrative Fundraising Retail Total
Salaries and henefits $ 16,560,747 5 1,931,296 ] 3,810,290 5 440,212 S 1,458,058 § 24,242303
Contract labor and services 1,395,913 20,062 336,257 - - 1,761,238
Occupaney 203,662 - 1,104,382 - 1,027,314 2,335,358
Medical supplies and eguipment 1,408,572 - - - - 1,408,572
Other ckpenses 370,744 140 385,199 46,763 32,447 885,203
Pharmacy, therapies, haspital
and laboratory 769,935 - - - - ¥69,955
Professional fees 96,809 - 259,800 - - 396,609
Depreciatian 12,068 56,462 303,323 - 41,400 503,753
Inpatient tacility 15,225 209,317 - - - 224,542
Patient related transportation 288,448 5722 - - - 294,170
General liability insurance G8a - 176,414 - - 177,100
Printing and office supplies 64,466 - 64,467 21,490 2433 158,856
Education 20,577 - 27,583 230 293 48,653
Total expenses 5 21,213,872 5 2,232,005 5 6,598,915 s 508,695 5 2,658,945 4 33,212,432

See MNotes to Finanpcial Statements 9



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Operating Activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash from operating activities

Net realized and unrealized (gain) loss on investments

Donated securities
Depreciation and amortization

Change in beneficial interest of charitabie trust
Faycheck Protection Program {PPP] loan forgiveness

Changes in assets and liahilities
Patient accounts recelvable, net
fnterest and dividends receivable
Contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
Deposits
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Funds held for others
Operating lease assets and liabifities
Refundable advance-Provider Relief Funds
Unearned revenue

Net Cash from Operating Activities
Investing Activities
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sales of investments
Furchases of property and equipment
Proceeds fraom sales of property and eguipment

Net Cash used for Investing Activities

Financing Activity
Increase in fine of credit

NetChange in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

2022

2021

S (2,590,523}

" $ 8,676,812

3,119,161 {1,949,582)
(75,134) {36,064)
553,140 509,753
41,667 {140,249)

- (3,495,364)
{709,362 199,946
{19,715} {4,861)
100,000 -
25,469 {42,296)
25,533 {78,412)
50,808 160,297
{120,870) {126,163)
{976) {18,454)
24,442 -
- (654,382)

{21,874) 17,477
401,766 3,018,458
{8,982,839) {20,133,209)
6,387,799 15,752,803
(767,582) {144,370

- 490,590
(3,362,629) {4,034,186)
338,508 -
(2,622,355) (1,015,728}
5,437,120 6,452,848

S5 2,814,765

S 5,437,120

10



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.

Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Notel- Nature of Operations

Organization

East Bay Integrated Care, inc. {dba Hospice of the East Bay) (Organization) is a California nonprofit crganization
which provides haspice care to terminally ili patients and their families throughout Contra Costa, Alameda and
Salana Counties. The Organization also operates a state licensed hospice inpatient facility in the East Bay, The
Bruns House. Patient care services are usuatly covered by Medicare, Medi-Cal, and private insurance payors;
however, not every patient accepted for care is eligible for insurance coverage, and not every service provided is
included under such coverage. Medically qualified patients are accepted regardless of type of illness, age, color,
sex, religious affiliation, or national origin. The Qrganization has specialty programs such as a community-based
Palliative Care Prograrn, the Give Me a Break respite program, the Bridge Program, the Tuck-In Program, We
Honar Veterans Program, and the Music and Memory Program which has beard-certified music therapists.

The QOrganization provides funding for charity care and other programs. The Organization receives suppott from
grants, community donations and fundraising activities and annual special events. In addition, the Organization
operates six thrift stores in Contra Costa County, which seil donated used clothing and household goads. The
related sales and operating expenses are reported as Retail Operations in the statements of operations. Retail
sales also include estate and vehicle sale proceeds.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in
the financial staterents, Basis of accounting refers to the timing of measurement made, regardless of the
measurement focus applied. The accompanying financial statements of East Bay Integrated Care, Inc. have been
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as performance obligations are satisfied
and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) ASC 958 and ASC 954. Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
ar absence of donor or grantor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified
and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donar Restrictions — The Organization reports contributions that are not subject to donor-
imposed restrictions as net assets without donor restrictions. Net assets without donor restrictions may be
designated for specific purposes by action of the Board of Directors.

11



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions — The Organization reports contributions as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor-imposed restrictions that can be met either by passage of time, or
other events specified by the donor. Denor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is,
when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has
been fulfilled, or both.

Income Taxes

The Organization is organized as a California nonprofit corporation and has been recognized by the Internal
Revenue Service {IRS) as exempt from Federal and State income tax under internal Revenue Code Section
501{c)(2) and Section 23701(d) of the Revenue and Taxation Code. The Organization is annually required to file a
Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS. In addition, the Organization is subject
to income tax on net income that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose.
The Organization has determined it is not subject to unrelated business income tax and has not filed and Exempt
Organization Business tncome Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the IRS.

The Organization believes that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken affecting its annual filing
requirements, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial
statements. The Organization would recognize future accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized
tax liakilities in income tax expense if such interest and penalties are incurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and Kabilities at the reporting date and revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing programs and activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the accompanying
statements of functional expenses, which presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function.
Expenses are charged directly to program services or supporting services categories based on direct expenses
incurred. An expense not directly chargeabie to a functional expense category is allocated based on personnel
activity, square footage and other criteria. The expenses that are allocated based on square footage include
occupancy and depreciation and amortization. Salaries and benefits, insurance, and other, are allocated based
on estimated time and effort.

12



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Qrganization considers all highly liquid investments with initial
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient receivables are uncollateralized patient and third-party payor obligations. The Organization does not
charge interest an unpaid patient receivables. Payments of patient receivables are allocated to the specific
claims identified in the remittance advice, or if unspecified, on self-paid claims are applied to the earliest unpaid
claim.

Patient accounts receivables are raduced by an allowance for implicit and explicit price concessions. tn
evaluating the collectability of accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes accounts for adverse changes in a
patient’s or third-party’s ability to pay that may have occurred subsequent to recognition. Management
regularly reviews specific data about receivable balances and its past history with similar cases to estimate the
appropriate allowance for implicit and explicit price concessions.

The Organization’s patient receivable balance as of lanuary 1, 2021 was $3,700,991.
Beneficial Interest in Charitable Trusts Held by Others

The Organization has been named as an irrevocable beneficiary of a charitable trust held and administered by an
independent trustee. This trust was created independently by donors and are administered by outside agents
designated by the donars. The Organization has neither possessian nor controf over the assets of the trust. At
the date the Organization receives notice of a beneficial interest, a contribution with donor restrictions is
recorded in tha statement of changes in net assets and a beneficial interest in charitable trusts held by others is
recorded in the balance sheet at fair value using present value techniques and risk-adjusted discount rates
designed to reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the expected distributions to be
received under the agreement. Thereafter, beneficial interests in the trusts are reported at fair value in the
balance shaet, which changes in fair value recognized in the statement of changes in net assets.

Upon receipt of trust distributions or expenditures, ar both, in satisfaction of the donor-restricted purpose, if
any, net assets with donor-imposed time or purpose restrictions are released to net assets without donor
restrictions. Trust distributions with donor-imposed restrictions that are perpetual in nature are transferred ta
the endowment, in which case, net assets with danor-restrictions are not released.

13



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Investments

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities, are
reported at their fair values in the statement of financial position. The fair vaiues are based on quoted market
prices. Donated investments are recorded at the market value on the date of donation. Unrealized gains and
losses are included in the performance indicator. Investment income is reported net of related investment
expenses.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions in excess of $5,000 are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the
date of donation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets ranging from 5 to 25 years. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related
depreciation is removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss in included in the statements of
operations. Casts of maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective
assets are expensed currently.

The estimates useful lives of property and equipment are as follows:

Land improvements 5-20 years
Buildings 25 years
Building improvements 1-20 years
Office furniture and egquipment 1-10 years
Vehicles 1-5 years

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as additions to net assets without
donor restrictions and are excluded from the performance indicator, unless explicit donor stipulations specify
how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the
assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are
reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how tang those long-lived assets must
ke maintained, expirations of doncr restrictions are reported when donated or when acguired long-lived assets
are placed in service.

The Organization considers whether indicators of impairment are present and performs the necessary analysis
to determine if the carrying values of assets are appropriate. No impairment was identified for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Patient Services Recognition of Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Organization
expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from patients, third-party
payors (including health insurers and government programs), and others and includes variable consideration for
retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews and investigations. Generally, the
Organization bills the patients and third-party payors at the end of the month for services provided. Revenue is
recognized as performance obligations are satisfied.

14



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the Organization.
Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on actual charges incurred in
relation to total expected (or actual) charges. The Organization believes that this method provides a faithful
depiction of the transfer of services over the term of the performance cbligaticn based on the inputs needed to
satisfy the obligation. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to patients receiving hospice,
palliative, or primary care services. The Organization measures the performance abligation through visits to the
patient up to the point when it is no longer required to provide services to that patient. Revenue for
performance abligations satisfied at a point in time is recognized when goods or services are provided, and the
Organization does not believe it is required to provide additional goods or services to the patient.

The Organization determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and services provided,
reduced by contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors, discounts provided to uninsured patients in
accordance with the Crganization’s policy, and/ar implicit price concessions provided to uninsured patients. The
Organization determines its estimates af contractual adjustments and discounts based on contractual
agreements, its discount policies and historical experience. The Organization determines its estimate of implicit
price concessions based on its historical collection experience with this class of patients.

Consistent with the Organization’s mission, care is provided to patients regardless of their ability to pay.
Therefore, the Qrganization has determined it has provided implicit price concessions to uninsured patients and
patients with other uninsured balances {for example, copays and deductibles). The implicit price concessions
included in estimating the transaction price represent the difference between amounts billed to patients and
the amounts the Crganization expects to collect based on its collection history.

Charity Care

The Organization has a policy for providing necessary care to hospice and palliative care patients regardiess of
third- party reimbursement status. The QOrganization relies on contributions and grants from the community to
ensure that charity care services continue to be offered. The Organization provided $317,853 and $411,259 in
charity care support based on charges forgane for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 at an
estimated cost of $313,000 and $373,000, respectively. The estimated cost of providing these services was
calculated by multiplying the ratio of cost to gross charges for the Organization by the gross uncempensated
charges associated with providing charity to care to its patients.

Retail Revenue Recognition

For performance obligations related to the sale of items at the Organization’s thrift shoppes, control transfers to
the customer at a point in time. The Organization recards revenue for retail sales at the point of sale when
delivery to the customer occurred.

Performance Indicator

Revenues in excess of {less than) expenses is the performance indicator and excludes contributions of long-lived
assets, which includes assets acquired using contributions which were restricted by donors.
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East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021,

Contributions and Grants

The Organization reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in unrestricted net assets if the
restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the
reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as
increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When
a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in
the statements of changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions,

Contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional promise to give, or
notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the
conditions on which they depend have been substantially met.

In-kind Contributions

In-kind contributions include donated professional services, donated equipment, and other in-kind contributions
which are recorded at the respective fair values of the goods and services received. In addition to in-kind
contributions, volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration, thrift
shoppes, and fundraising and development activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the value
of these contributed services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by generally accepted
accounting principles. Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the date of donation.

Allin-kind contributions received during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 were unrestricted.
Advertising Costs

Costs incurred for producing and distributing advertising are expensed as incurred. The Organization incurred
$245,401 and $324,750 for advertising costs for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash, money market accounts and investiments with financial
institutions believed 1o be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits or include
uninsured investments in money market mutual funds. To date, the Organization has not experienced losses in
any of these accounts. Although the fair values of investments are subject to fluctuation on a year-to-year basis,
managernent believes that the investment policies and guidelines are prudent for the long-term welfare of the
organization.

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which exceed federally insured fimits. Accounts are
guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation {FDIC) up to $250,000 per depasitor, per insured bank,
for each account ownership category. At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Qrganization has approximately
$2,688,000 and 54,452,000, respectivaly, in excess of FDIC-insurad limits.
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East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
Deceamber 31, 2022 and 2021

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the accompanying financial
statements to maintain consistency between period presented. The reclassifications had no impact on
praviously reported net assets.

Note 3 - Change in Accounting Principle

Effective January 1, 2022, the Organization adopted the new lease accounting guidance in Accounting Standards
Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The Organization elected to apply the guidance as of January 1, 2022,
the beginning of the adoption period. The comparative financial information and disclosures presented are in
accordance with the legacy standard, ASC 840. The standard requires the recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for laase cantracts with terms greater than 12 months. Operating lease costs are recognized in
the income statement as a single lease cost and finance lease costs are recognized in two components, interest
expense and amortization expense. The Organization has elected the package of practical expedients permitted
in ASC Topic 842. Accordingly, the Organization accounted for its existing leases as eithar finance or operating
lease under the new guidance, without reassessing {a) whether the contract contains a lease under ASC Topic
842, {b) whether classification of the operating lease would be differant in accordance with ASC Topic 842, or {c)
whether the unamortized initial direct costs before transition adjustments would have met the definition of
initial direct costs in ASC Topic 842 at lease commencement.

As a result of the adoption of the new lease accounting guidance, the Organization recognized on January 1,
2022, the beginning of the adoption period, no cumulative effect adjustment to net assets, an operating lease
liability of 52,938,285, and an operating right-of-use asset of $3,913,843. The adoption of the new standard did
not materially impact the Organization’s statements of operations or statements of cash flows. See Note 11 for
further disclosure of the Organization’s lease contracts.

Note 4 - Lliquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donar or other restrictions limiting their use,
within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:

2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents S 2,814,785 S 5,437,120
Patient accounts receivable, net 4,210,407 3,501,045
Total s 7,025,172 5 8,938,165

The Organization’s endowment fund consists of ene donor-restricted endowment. Income from the donor-
restricted endowment is restricted for specific purpose of the Bruns House ongoing operations on an annual
basis. Donor-restricted endowment funds are not available for general expenditures.
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East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Ngtes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

As part of the Grganization’s liquidity management plan, the Organization retains at least 52,300,000 in an
aperating account. On a monthly basts, cash in excess of this amount is transferred to an investments account.
Cash is invested in Fixed Income Mutual Funds, Preferred Stocks, Domestic and Foreign based Equities and
Mutual Funds and Common Stack. As the Organization's governance does not intend to use its investments,
including the interest and dividends receivable, far general expenditure within one year of the balance sheet
date, investments are not included in the above table, but could be made available as needed. In addition, the
contribution receivable is restricted by the donor.

Note 5 - Patient Service Revenue

The Organization has agreements with third-party payors that provide for prospectively determined daily rates.
A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors is as follows:

Medicare and Medicaid — The Organization’s services provided to Medicare and Medicaid program beneficiaries
are paid at prospectively determined rates. The rates vary according ta level of care and where the patient lives,
These rates are not subject to retroactive adjustments.

The Organization has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers and
other organizations. The payment methodalogy under these agreements is similar to Medicare and Medicaid,
although the amounts are different.

Concentrations of net revenues by major payor accounted for the following percentage of the Organization’s
patient service revenues for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021
Medicare 94% 92%
Medi-Cal 2% 3%
Other third-party payors A% 5%
100% 100%

Generally, patients who are covered by third-party payors are responsibie for related deductibles and
coinsurance, which vary in amount. The Organization alsc provides services to uninsured patients, and offers
those uninsured patients a discount, either by policy or {aw, from standard charges. The Organization estimates
the transaction price for patients with deductibles and coinsurance and from those who are uninsured based on
historicai experience and current market conditions. The initial estimate of the transaction price is determined
by reducing the standard charge by any contractual adjustments, discounts and implicit price concessions based
on historical collection experience. Subseqguent changes to the estimate of the transaction price are generally
recorded as adjustments to patient service revenue in the period of the change. The ability to estimate the
collectability of uninsured and other self-pay patients is contingent on the patient’s ability or willingness to pay
for the services provided. Subsequent changes that are determinad to be the result of an adverse change in the
patient’s ability to pay are recorded as implicit price concession. implicit price concessions for the years ended
Decernber 31, 2022 and 2021 were {56,086) and $100,923, respectively.
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East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
MNotes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by severa! factors that the
QOrganization considers in its recognition of revenue. Foliowing are some of the facters considered:

»  Payors (for example, Medicare, Medicaid, managed care or other insurance, patient) have different
reimbursement/payment methodologies

« Length of the patient’s service/episode of care

* Geography of the service location

» The Organization’s line of businesses that provided the service (for exampie, hospice, palliative,
inpatient, etc.)

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Organization recognized patient revenue of $28,777,320
and $30,683,590 from services and goods provided over time.

Note 6 - Provider Relief Funds

The Organization received 1,511,069 of Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Econormic Security (CARES) Act Provider
Relief Funds administered by the Departmeant of Health and Human Services (HHS). The funds are subject to
terms and conditions imposed by HHS. Among the terms and conditions is a provision that payments will anly be
usad to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus and shall reimburse the recipient only for healthcare-
related expenses or lost revenues that are attributable to coronavirus. Recipients may not use the payments to
reimburse expenses or losses that have been reimbursed from other sources or that other sources are abligated
to reimburse. HHS currently has various deadlines to incur aligible expenses. Unspent funds will be expected to

be repaid.

These funds are recorded as a refundable advance when received and are recognized as revenues in the
accompanying statements of operations as all terms and conditions are considered met. The terms and
conditions are subject to interpretation, changes and future clarification, the most recent of which have been
considered through the date that the financial statements were available to be Issued. In addition, this program
may be subject to oversight, monitoring and audit. Failure by a provider that received a payment from the
Provider Relief Fund to comply with any term or condition can subject the provider to recoupment of some or all
the payment. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a
material amount in the near term.

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Organization recognized %0 and $654,382 as revenue
in the accompanying statements of operations.
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Note 7 - Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) Advance

The Organization was granted a $3,495,364 loan under the PPP administered by a Small Business Administration
{SBA) approved partner. The loan was uncoltateralized and fully guaranteed by the Federal government. The
Organization elected to account for the funding as a conditional contribution by applying ASC 958-805, Not-for-
Profit - Revenue Recognition. The Qrganization initially recorded the loan as a refundable advance and
subsequently recognized contribution revenue in accordance with guidance for conditional contributions, that
is, once the measurable performance or other barrier and right of return of the PPP loan no longer existed. The
QOrganization recognized $3,495,364 as contribution revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021,

Note 8 - Property and Equipment

2022 2021

land $  3,8725000 % 3,875,000
Land improvements 211,314 211,314
Building 4,025,008 4,025,008
Building improvements 1,014,213 891,126
Office furniture, eguipment, and software 2,032,235 1,982,913
Vehicles 799,977 167,018
Construction in progress 74,595 12,375
Gross property and equipment 12,032,342 11,264,754
Less: accumulated depreciation {4,667,800) {4,114 661)

Net property and equipment § 7364542 § 7,150,093

Depreciation expense charged to operations was $553,140in 2022 and $509,753 in 2021.

Note 9 - Investments

Investments consist of the following at December 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021
Fixed income 5 16,192,728 5 14,554,830
Eguity securities 7,335,508 8,654,005
Mutual funds -equities 2,324,366 3,603,813
Warrants and rights 1,526 467
Total investments 5 25,854,128 S 26,303,115

Investments are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk
associated with certain investment securities, it is at least possible that changes in risks in the near term could
materially affect account balances and the amounts reported in the accompanying financiai statements.
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Investment income consisted of the following far the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021
Investment income
Interest and dividend income, net 3 843,774 S 549,765
Realized gain {loss) {11,317) 13,919
Unrealized gain (loss) {3,108,333) 1,938,962
Investment fees {41,027} (41,337)

5 (2,316,909) 5 2,461,309

Changes in net assets with donor restrictions

Interest and dividend income, net 5 {36,515) S 43,413
Realized gain (loss) 495 {3,299}
5 (602) 5 an1u

Note 10 - Fair Value Measurements

The Organization reports certain assets and liabilities at fair value in the financial statements. Fair value is the
price that would be received when selling an asset or paid to transfer a ltability in an orderly transaction in the
principal, or most advantageous, market at the measurement date under current market cenditions regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. Inputs used to
determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liahility, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are
inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants wouid use in pricing the asset or liability based on
market data abtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unabservable inputs are inputs that
reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing
the asset or liability based on the best information available.

A three- tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

Level 1~ Quated prices funadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that can be accessed at
the measurement date.

Level 2 —Inputs other than quoted market prices inctuded within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
lizbility, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted
prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 — Unobservahle inputs for the asset or liakility. In these situations, inputs are developed using the best
information available in the circumstances.

21



East Bay Integrated Care, inc.
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized within
different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is categorized in its
entirety in the same leve! of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest input level that is significant to the entire
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the entire measurement requirement judgment
taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is
based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and does not necessarily correspond to an assessment of the
quality, risk or liquidity profile of the asset of liability.

A portion of the investments are classified within Level 1 because they comprise various mutual funds and
equities with readily determinable fair values based on daily redemption values. Fixed income securities are
valued by the custodians of the securities using pricing models based on credit guality, time to maturity, stated
interest rates and market-rate assumptions, and are classified within Level 2. The fair value of the beneficial
interest in the charitable trust is determined by using present vaiue technigues and risk-adjusted discount rates
designed to reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the underlying assets and are
based on the fair values of the trust investments as reported by the trustee.

The following table presents the balances of the assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December
31, 2022

Fair Value Measurements at Report Date Using

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) Total
Investments
Fixed income 5 - S 16,192,728 4 - S 16,192,728
Equity securities 7,335,508 - - 7,335,508
Mutual funds-equities 2,324,366 - - 2,324,366
Warrants and rights 1,526 - - _ 1,526
S 9,661,400 5 16,192,728 S - S 25,854,128
Beneficial interestin
charitable trust 5 - 5 169,460 5 - S 165,460
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The following table presents the balances of the assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December

31,2021
Fair Value Measurements at Report Date Using
Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Ohservahle Unabservahle
tdentical Assets Inputs Inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) Total
Invastments
Fixed income % - S 14,554,830 5 - § 14,554,830
Equity securities 8,654,005 - - 8,654,005
Mutuat funds-equities 3,093,812 - - 3,093,813
Publicly traded other 467 - - 467
S 11,748,285 S 14,554,830 g - S 26,303,115
Beneficial interest in
charitable trust 5 - S 211,127 S - S 211,127

Note 11 - Leases

The Organization leases certain office space for various terms under long-term, non-cancelable operating lease
agreements. The leases expire at various dates through 2030 and provide for renewal options ranging from
three to five years. The Organization included in the determination of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
any renewal options when the options are reasonably certain to be exercised. The leases provide for increases in
future minimum annual rental payments based on defined increases in the Consumer Price index, subject to
certain minimum or maximurm increases. Also, the agreements generaily reguire the Company to pay real estate

taxes, insurance, and repairs.

The weighted-average discount rate is based on the discount rate implicit in the lease. If the implicit rate is not
readily determinable from the lease, the Organization estimates an applicable incremental borrowing rate. The
incremental borrowing rate is estimated using the Organization’s applicable borrowing rates and the contractual

lease term.

The Qrganization has elected the short-term iease exemption for all leases with a term of 12 months or less
for both existing and ongoing operating {eases to not recognize the asset and liability for these leases. Lease
payments for short-term leases are recognized on a straight-line basis.
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Total lease costs for the year ended December 31, 2022 were as follows:

2022

Operating lease cost 5 838,669
Total lease expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 for all operating leases was 5933,720.
The foliowing table summarizes the supplemental cash flow information for the year ended December 31, 2022:

2022

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities
Operating cash flows from operating leases S {814,227)

The following summarizes the weighted-average remaining lease term and weight-average discount rate:

2022
Weighted-average remaining lease term:
Operatng leases 4.26 years
Weighted-avarage discount rate:
Operatng leases 4.31%

The future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases with terms greater than one year
are listed below as of December 31, 2022:

2022
Operating

2023 5 779,405
2024 543,885
2025 440,690
2026 261,613
2027 103,813
Thereafter 268,388
Taotal lease payments 2,397,894

Less interest {200,691}
Present value of lease liabilities 5 2,187,203
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Future minimum payments determined under the guidance in Topic 840 are listed below as of December 31,
2021:

2021
Operating

2022 5 798,092
2023 1,440,756
2024 491,372
2025 383,562
2026 219,461
Thereafter 288,641
Total lease payments 3,621,884
Less interest {306,961)
Presant value of lease liabilities S 3,314,923

Note 12 - Line of Credit

The Organization has a bank line of credit for $4,000,000. The line of credit is secured by the Organization’s
investment portfalio. Interest is charged on the outstanding balance at the prime rate fess 1.75%. The prime rate
at December 31, 2022 was 7.5% so the interest rate on the line of credit was 5.75%. There was a balance of
$338,508 and 50 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The fine of credit expires July 15, 2025.

The Organization has a second bank line of credit for $500,000. The line of credit is secured by real property.

interest is charged on the outstanding balance at 2.538% above the LIBOR rate index. There were no
outstanding halances at December 31, 2022 and 2021. The line of credit does not have a pre-set maturity date.
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MNote 13 - Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purpases or periods:

2022 2021
Subject to expenditure for specified purpose
Respite care 5 173,108 3 126,276
Give me a break 515,027 525,897
Music and memory 27,127 30,721
Endowment earnings 206,455 232,860
921,717 915,754
Subject to the passage of time
Beneficial interest in charitable trust 169,460 311,127
Endowments
Held in perpetuity, the income from which is
expendable to support Bruns House 500,000 500,000
S 1,591,177 S 1,726,821

During 2022 and 2021, net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenditures satisfying the
restricted purposes and the expiration of time restrictians in the amounts of $1486,040 and 196,557 a5 detailed
below. These amounts are included in net assets refeased from restrictions in the accompanying financial

statements.
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Satisfaction of purpose restrictions

Volunteer Program Donations
Bereavement - General

Bruns House general
Childrens Program

Education

Rossmoor Respite Care donation
Give me a Break Respite
Spiritual Care

Patient Care

Palliative Care

Music & Memory

Music Therapist

Satisfaction of time restriction

Total

2022 2021

s 4,750 S 8,631
5,621 8,157

84,480 89,726

208 1,777

957 363

1,728 3,573

10,895 32,188

204 150

9,912 6,803

21,295 41,793

4,255 12

1,135 3,384

100,000 -

5 246,040 5 196,557
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Note 14 - Endowment

The Organization’s endowment (the Endowment] consists of an individual fund, the Bruns House, established by
a donor to provide annual funding for the ongoing expenses at Bruns House. The Organization determined the
net assets forming the Bruns House Fund is legaliy restricted as an endowment fund and should therefore he
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. The Qrganization's Board of Directors has interpreted the
California Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act {UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of
the fair value of the original gift as of the date of the donor-restricted endowment funds, unless there are
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. At December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no such donor
stipulations. As a result of this interpretation, the Organization retains in perpetuity {a) the original value of
initial and subsequent gift amounts and (b} any accumulations to the endowment made in accordance with the
direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added.

The following factors are considered in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds:

« The duration and preservation of the fund.

*  The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund.
*  General economic conditions.

*  The possible effect of inflation and deflation.

*  The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments.
s (Other resources of the Organization.

*  The investment policies of the Organization.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Organization had the following endowment net asset compaosition by
type of fund:

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Rastrictions Total
December 31, 2022
Donor-restricted endowment funds
Original donor-restricted gift amounts
required to be maintained in perpetuity 3 - 5 500,000 5 500,000
Accumulated investment earnings - 206,455 206,455
8 - 5 706,455 S 706,455
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Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
December 31, 2021
Donor-restricted endowment funds
Original donor-restricted gift amounts
required to be maintained in perpetuity S - 5 500,000 5 500,000
Accumulated investment earnings - 232,860 232,860
5 - 5 732,860 5 732,860

From time to time, certain donor-restricted endowment funds may have fair values less than the amount
reguired to be maintained by donars or by law {underwater endowments). The Organization has interpreted
UPMIFA ta permit spending from underwater endowments in accordance with prudent measures required by
law. At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the were no underwater endowments.

Investment and Spending Policies

The Organization has adopted an investment policy that attempts to maximize total return consistent with
acceptable levels of risk, which applies to all investments, including the endowment fund. Endowment assets are
invested in a well-diversified asset mix, which includes equity and debt securities, in order to minimize the risk of
large losses. A well-qualified investment advisor maintains the portfolio; efforts are made to control risk and are
evaluated regularly to ensure that the risk assumed is commensurate with the given objectives.

Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
Balance as of December 31, 2020 5 - 5 701,195 5 701,195
Investment income - 31,665 31,665
Balance as of December 31, 2021 - 732,860 732,866
Investment income {loss) - {26,405) {26,405)
Balance as of Detember 31, 2022 5 . 4 706,455 5 706,455
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Note 15 - Fund Development

Fund development activities reported individually in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework in the statements of operations are summarized as follows for the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021:

Without Donor With Daonor
December 31, 2022 Restrictions Restrictions Total
Contributions and grants S 1,080,147 8 188,023 5 1,238,170
Special events, net 176,983 - 176,983
Net assets released from restriction 246,040 {246,040} -

S 1,473,170 5 (58,017} 5 1,415,153

Without Donor With Donor
December 31, 2021 Restrictions Restrictions Total
Contributions and grants 5 1,043,265 S 302,393 $ 1,345,653
Special events, net : 188,777 - 198,777
Net assets released from restriction 186,557 {156,557} -

5 1,438,599 5 105,836 5 1,544,435

Note 16 - Retirement Plan {(403b Plan)
The Organization provides a salary deferral plan for all eligible employees. Upon completing 1,000 hours of

service, the employer matches up to $2,000 annually per employee. The empioyer matching contributions to the
plan were $288,272 and $347,357 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Note 17 - Rental income
Rental income arises from the leasing of a portion of the Organization’s Pleasant Hill property to three unrelated
parties. The lease terms for the tenants are five years, four years and one year, respectively. Gross rental income

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 was $63,029 and $142,155, respectively,

Future minimum rental income under these leases is as follows:

Year Ended December 31, Amount
2023 4 11,872

30



East Bay Integrated Care, Inc.
Notes ta Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Note 18 - Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are insured under third-party
payor agreements, The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors at December 31, 2022 and 2021
was as foilows:

2022 2021
Medicare 82% 74%
Medi-Cal 8% 18%
Other third-party payors 9% 7%
Patignts 1% 1%
100% 100%

Note 19 - Commitments and Contingencies

State and Federal Revenue

The QOrganization receives patient services revenue from Federal and State funds for specific purposes that are
subject to review and audit by the governmental agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure
disallowances under terms of the payments from the Federal and State agencies, in the opinion of management,
any required reimbursements will not be material.

Paycheck Protection Program Loan Review

Loans issued under the Paycheck Protection Program {PPP) were subject to good-faith certifications of the
necessity of the loan request. Borrowers with loans issued under the program in excess of $2 million are subject
to review by the Small Business Administration (SBA) for comgliance with the program requirements. If the 58A
determines that a borrower lacked an adequate basis for the [oan or did not meet the program requirements,
the loan will not e eligible for ioan forgiveness and the SBA will seek repayment of the cutstanding PPP
balance. As such, the potential exists that the Organization may be deemed ineligible for loan forgiveness and
would be required to repay the balance.

Litigations, Claims, and Disputes
The Qrganization is subject to the usual contingencies in the normal course of operatians relating to the

performance of its tasks under its various programs. Management assesses the ultimate settlement of any
litigations, claims, and disputes in process in determining whether a liability should be recorded, or a disclosure

should be presented.
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The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local governments.
Compliance with these laws and regulations, specifically those relating to Medicare and Medi-Cal program, can
be subject to government review and interpretations, as well as regulatory actions unknown and unasserted at
this time. Federal government activity with respect to investigations and allegations concerning passible
viclations of reguiations by healthcare providers coutd result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties,
as well as significant repayments of previously billed and collactad revenues from patient services.

Note 20 - Risk Management

The QOrganization is exposed to various risks of loss in tha ordinary course of business as a result of torts, theft
of, damage to, or destruction of assets, business interruption, allegations of medical malpractice {professional
liability), natural disasters, injury, employee and officer errors and omissions, and employee warkers’
compensation and medical claims. The Organization purchases commercial insurance coverage against risk of
loss due to errors and omissions, fiduciary liability, property damage and theft, pollution liability, and various
other insurable risks. Professional liability coverage is on a claims-made basis with limits of $3 million per
occurrence subject to a $5 million aggregate limit.

The Organization is a member of BETA Healthcare Group {BETA) for workers’ compensation coverage. BETA
provides coverage to hospitals, healthcare facilities and medical groups. BETA is a risk management joint powers
authority {/PA) formed pursuant to the California Government Code. The purpose of the JPA is to purchase and
administer workers’ compensation insurance for the pooling of self-insured losses and to purchase excess
insurance coverage whereby the risk of loss is mitigated by the JPA. BETA purchases workers” compensation
insurance under a claims-made policy with limits of $2 million per occurrence. BETA also purchases excess
insurance coverage for claims in excess of 52 million up to statutory limits.

BETA members are assessed a contribution for each program in which they participate. Members may be
subject to additional supplemental assessments if it is determined that the contributions are insufficient.
Members may withdraw from BETA with thirty day written advance notice. BETA may cancel a membership for
failure to implement loss control or risk management recommendations upon a majority vote of the Board of
Directors and with sixty days written notice. Upon withdrawal or canceliation, a member shall not remain
subject to additional assessments for the program periods they have participated.

Note 21 - Subsequent Events

Subseguent events have been evaluatad through June 30, 2023, the date the financial statements were available
to be issued.

32



11 Cal. Code Res. Section 999 35(d}W 11} ()

Any requests for opinions to the Internal Revenne Service for rulings attendant
to this transaction and any Internal Revenune Service responses thereto.

N/A



. Section 999.5

11 Cal. Code Re

Pro forma post-transaction balance sheet for the surviving or successor
nonprofit corporation

The afliliation Transaction will not result in an immediate change to Elospice East
Bay’s balance sheet. As 4 result, no pro forma post-Transaction balance sheet has been
prepared.

Chaprters and Hospice East Bay anticipate that Hospice Fast Bay's balance sheet will
improve incrementally over time as new strategic plans for Hospice Fast Bay are develeped
and implemented, and as [lospice Last Bay gains new efficiencies in its operations and lakes
advantage of opportunilics as part of the Chapters health system that would not otherwise be

availahle.
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iINDEPENDENT AURITOR'S REPORT

Boars of Dirsctors
Chapters Health Systam, Inc. and Affillates
Temple Tarrace, Fiorida

Opinien

We have audited the consolidated financial stalements of Chaptars Health System, Inc. and Affitiates, which
comprise the consolidaied balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related consoidated
statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash fiows for the yaars than ended, and the reiated
netes to the consolidated financial statements.

n sur opinion, the acoompanying consolidated financial siztements present fairy, in ali material respects,
the financial posidon of Chapters Heaith System, Ing. and Affiitates as of Dacemner 31, 2023 and 2022,
and the changes in their nat assets and thair cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generafly accepted in $ie United States of America,

Sasis for Qpinfon

We cendticted our audils in accordance with auditing standards generafly accepted ir the United Statas o
America (GAAS).  Our responsibifities vnder those standards are furher describec in the Auditer's
Rasponsiilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of aus report. Wa are required to be
irdependant of Chapiess Heaith System. inc. ard Affiiates and to meet our other ethical responsibiities, in
accurdance with the ralevant ethica! requirements relating to our audits. We beiteve that the audit evidence
we have oblainad is sulficlent and appropriate o provide g basis fer our audit opinkan.

Responsibilities of Managerment for the Financial Statements

Maragement is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of tha consolidated financiai
statemends i accordance with accounting principles gensrally accepied in the United Statas of America,
and for the dasign. implemantation, and maintenance of internal conlrsl relevant to tha preparation and fair
neesantation of consolidated financiai statamanis that ara frae from material misstaternent. whether due lo
traug or arror.

In praparing the conzolldated financlal stalements, managamant is required (o gvaluate whether thera are
conditions or events, considerad in e aggregate. that raise substantial doubt about Chaplers Haallh
Systam, inc, and Affiilales’ abllity to conlinue 25 a going concern for one year from ihe data the consolidaled
firancial stalements ara available lo be issued.

{ontinued)



Auditor's Responsibifiifos far the Audit of the Finapnoial Statemants

Gur objeclives are 10 oblain reasorab'c assuranoe annut whether the gonsciidaled financial stataments ag
# whole are fea fron: material misstatement, whether dus to Faud or eror, and to issue an auditac's mpon
that inckides sur oninden. Reasoratdas assuranse s a hgh level of assurance butis not abssciule assurance
and therefore iz not a guarantes that an audit condusted i sccordance wih GAAS wil aiways dotact a
matzrial missistenest when it axisis,

The risk of not detecting s reatanial missiatement reswsting from fraud |3 highar an for ane resdling from
arror, as fraud may involva collusion, forgery, infzrlional omissions. misreprasaniations. o the nvarride of
imernal control,. Misstatamants are corsitered material if there is 3 subsianial Fkelitosd that, individudily
or ¢ Ihe aggregate, they would influence the jurigmeni made by a ressonatie Lser basad on the
conschdated Ananclal siatemants,

In performing an acdit in Accordancs with GAAS . we:

+  Exeruise profgssional ludgmeni ard maintain professiona’ skagiticisim shroughout e audit,

»  Mdentify and asszss the risks of maferizl misstalerment of the consoligatad financia! statements, whether
due o frauc o arror, and desgn and perform audit orocedures responzive o those nshe, Such
procadurss inchude examining. o0 & tesi basis, 2vidence regarding e smounts and disdnsures in the
consolidated finarsial statemarts.

= Doiain an anderstanding of intemnal controi relevant to the audit in order (o design aud+ nracedures that
are approprizie n the circumstances. bui not for the pursose of expressirg An apinion on the
effeciiveness of Chapters Health System, ins. and Affilisdes’ iekarnal control Accerdingly, no such
opinin: is exprazsed.

*  Evatuate the appropriateness of accounting policies tsed and tre masonablersss of signiflcart
accounting astimains made by managsmesnd, as weil as evaiuste the gwveral) pragsntation of ke
consolidated fnarcial statements.

+  Conclide whether, in our judgrmest, thera are cond Hons o ovenls, zonsidered in the agaiegale, that
raise slbstantial doutt aboul Chapters Heallh Svatem, ins. and Afilialss' abiiity to cotinue 23 & gaing
concen for a8 reasorable parod of time.

We are required 19 communicate wilh those charged with govemarncs regarding, amsng other matters, the
planred scope ard timinyg of the awd L, signiticant audit findings, and certain irternal control-relaied matters
that we entiiec curing the aud,

Other Maktars

Oui audil was condusted for the pumose of furming an opinion on the 2023 consoidated fnancai
sfatarnents as a whete  The 2023 obligated graun andg sorsoiidating balanze sheels, atfigated groun and
consulidating statements of operaticns, and obligated araun and coasnlifatng stalemerts of thangss in
el 3useds are presenied for purposes of sdditional snalysis of the 2073 ronsodidated nancial stataments
ratfrer thar o present the financal postion and opsrations zad chanass in net aszets of tha nefividua
albliates ang ar= not 4 required part of the 2023 consoldated francal statemants Euch wformation is the
responsibility of management and was dorived from and relates dirsctly o the underyicg accoeaiing ang
other records wssd io grepare the 2023 consolidated Snancial slatements. The nformation has bean
subjected 10 the auditing procedires apalied in the sudi! of the 2022 corsolidated financa? siatarnents and
cerain aodiiona: omcedures, including comganng and moonciling such infration directly (o the
undariying accounting and odhar records used to prapare the 2023 consnlidated financial srolervieats or i
the 2023 consalidated firanchal statemants themsaslves, and other acciticnal pracedyires o accordance with
auditing standards generally acreatad in the United States of &merca. In our apimen, the informatfon is
fairty staigd in all material restects in relation to tha 2023 consoiidatod financial statemeants as a whola,

. marizia . L LrF
Crows LL™

Tampa, Flonda
Aprif 26, 2024



CONSCUDATED BAL ANCE SHEETS
Decanthar 31, 2023 and 2022

CHAPTERE MEALTH SYSTERM, M. AMD AFFILIATER

ASEETS

Curyanst asnals
Tash andg cush aquivatarta
Stort-term ivesimants
Asseis limited os to vse. ciprent Joflon
Patieni accounls mosivalbls net
Capitated accounts eosivable
Tuee from redated parly
Mota renriabla
Bledges reoshetla durent nordion
intoeest rate swap agreeants
{AAPe” GUrant assols

Toie! current assets

fsssts imilad as 1o use, net
Filadges reosivabic, nat
Lang-term imestmenis

Propesty and aquisnent. rel
Righi-of-ae aasqts

Beonaficinl inferast in oot aesstis of
Goodwill 218 ntanginls assels, net
Clher aasels

Tatal asasts

Comersions
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8518402
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CHEFTERSG HEALTH SYETEM NG, AMD AFFILIATES

LIABILITIES AMD NEY ABSETH

Cument liabilities

Azcounis pavable ang aceried sepanses

saried emploves compensation amd rslatsd bancfia
Esltimatod paiient cere suoonses sayabis
Thire-pady emadicsl cinims
Lease liakines, curmsni

Currsit portion of iong-ferm dabl
Aoty chiigations, curent porticn

Thad-parly setifernents

Deiferred revenue

Tedal curent fabiities

Long-termr dobt, nel of curent norlion
Leass liatiitles. net

Armuity stiigotions, nat
Cihgr ong-tarm Sabilities

Total tabilitios

dal gEsoie

Withous donor mgthctions

MNorwcontroliing inlerest in subgigianzs

Total net asgets without Jenot rostistiong
With donor maticlions

Taial net agssts

CONSOLIDATED BALAMCIE SHEETS
Dacerrber 31, 2020 gnd 2022

2623 2002
§ 21830478 % 735831
25,132,162 12,425 829
43,654 534 8003, 588
2 462,980 1,812 382
7,548,904 4,149,085
2,200,843 1,552 300
109,455 154, 457

1,527,540

73,276,220

Y ATIATT
44 THE 54

396,046,509
4,352,

22,542 AOR
e8.624. 707
£h8.575

£21,336.505
. lpazTe
230,283,753

L2372z

e IR R TR

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial staiements



CAARTERS HEALTH SYETEM, INC, AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED STATEVENTS OF QPERATIGNE
Years ended Dacamber 31, 2023 4nd 2022

2023 022
tat angeis withuat dongr rastrictions
HermnLes and other suppart
Mag patizd secdoe favanse R LR R R0 195 B
Capitatsd neOrk reenis RO M A1 AARE

ConlTaadong 8,343,502

Bt Aneats reledsed from aent Ny used fiy cpacation s ORaT 5148

Cher speraling mynys B0 2%

Tatal resenes, gains ard sdagson d37 537 453

Expantes

Saladdss angd Denetis KERRSLF wgd T4, TUG
PlUiGhas s sprdeas dE, BEM S0y 22 Mg ARE
WrsranGe e oibar B2 212 fan 47 B TEHR

Ourable ined:cal egu’prnant mecoal suppd=s, aid dnags
hdescdicnsy o
Daprecialisn 20d amerizaton
Interast

ATl

Troiai expensas

foh ernerssy

Loss from cparndicns CE BUS ABE) [ TR

Mongperating revenyes and eXpanEs
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of Hope Fospics end Zomemenily Sardoes, oo (Mopel ang Cepig
{ianrg Health zno it affiiates (Sopdal) (e Noe 2 A TIN A
CEoe foptue of Acsets ataguiresd ower datllitics
asadaned §1 acqustion of Comseretons Mosoice angd
Salliative Care, Inc (Comorstane) (Sqe Nois 7)
iLuss} gain v sale of propsry and squiprent
Loak on disposat of license
l.oss or saic of a burress
lr@stment Fooms {fosz
Chiggrages |2 fair waile ol Inlerest rele swop agreements

Trst

bt
o

3 nGruperaling (1855 nooma

Crangs in nut assets without deror ragtristicna belore other chongas

Change in net assets whth donor rastrictians hafors ather changes
Excoss of fair vaive of asasts scgaired caer iabililies assLmed in acgquistion
of Sope Hospice and Cominunidy Sapdoes, i [Hnge) ane] (Cagial
Caring Health ang s afiziatas {Capilal) (Saes MNata 2
Excess of fair weluc of azsels aco rrag ourr lighilihes
assumed in soquistion of Comergiaone Faspios Amd
Paliiative Case, lac IComarsione) (Sae Nota 2}
Contatadions
in@mabmerl inpome {uds)
Chaege [0 benefaial interas in ne! 2haets
of Cairwrsiong Fowation
Mot dawses releasan fmm restnchions

Lhanga In ret gasats with donor redlricions nefore sthar changes

See sccompanying notes to consclidated financiai statomant
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CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTERM, NG, AND AFFILIATES

CORSOLIDATED STATEMER

TR GF CHANGES IN NEZT ASSETR

Yeurs ancdasd oermingr 31, 2022 and 2022

Het gueetn wilhodd doner remrndons - Janeayy

Chnge It oot geg sty i soacs e onons before othor shangse
Neembar diahiboticns
Chgsrsapz In roe-comisalling barsst

Shangs in net assals withost donor ssivctions

Het dsmets wihout donor Matrictions - oo mper 3

Wal gasets with domor meEtctions - January 1
Shiigs i ok @88us wid donor e retivrs Telois Olher shangss

Yot pnsoim whliut aonsr reeldsions - Deos mber 52

Nt

YOI ZEATLS PHY B3 422
04,700,094

(307954

__TEuRIS

LB AR
£ 392743000 LEAEHA YES
& 14423401

_ 1#,423_.‘»3.'}5

See seo0mpainying Ralés o consolidaled fndncial steleranis



OHAPTERS HEALTH SIYSTEN, INC. AND AFFILIATES
COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASR FLOWS
voars enaed Decomber 31, 2023 and 2022
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CHAPTERS MEALTH SY3TEM, INC. ANG AFFILIATES
NOTES 7O CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cacambar 31, 2323 ang 2002

HOTE 4 - CRGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Croardzation ang Mission: Chapters Hearth Systen, ine. and Affifates ‘ooliecively THS), » o Fiorda norprofit
cerporalion that provides suppeit and care for peopie in oor community with or affacted Wy advanced
dinegsas by offering a wide variety of compassionate healthcara choices. CHS's service sreas notide
Flodda, Gecrgia, Virginig, Mandand, and Washingon DO,

CHS Is the sofe roemnber of sach of the foliowing antities:

LitePalh Hospice, inc. {LPHY LPH is a Florids ronpofit corparation whose mission I8 10 provids hosplce and
other and of He sarvices for tesldents living In [ifllsherough Coundy, Flosda

Gaod Shepherd Hospioe, nc. {OSH). GSH s 2 Florda nonproflt comoration whose mission is 'o provida
hespiea and tiner end of life services for residents iivirg in Palk, Highlande, Hardes, and Monros countiss,
Florida,

Chaptars Heafth Pharnacy, LLC (PHAY Pharmacy % & Fiorida sing!s member imited labitty comparny that
provides charmacy sanices 10 tha Aflllates.

Chajters Hezith Palialve Care, .G (PALY Palliative Cars Is a Fionda single rember Emited liabillty company
that provides pelliative carg services i the countios served by the Afliates.

Craptars Health Saficg, LLG (9351 Safirg is e Flovda singis mambar imited iakily SOrIRany Wil poimar ly
wrovides physidien. oursing. asd therapy senvicss o the AfTIaes.

Hermando-Fasco Hespice, Inc. (HPH: HPH iz a Flwide ronsrofit aoiposation whose mission o In provide
nespice and olher gnc-oiile services for residents vty in Hernandd, Pesoo, Cirus, and Alauhua countos,
HFH also srovides home heaits services in Pason, Pinellas, Hardae, Hightasds, Hillsborough, and Polk counties
Lntif March 2022 ai which e those services were discontinued and the Medicare erroiiment was volu Atarihy
terminated.

Cormerstone Hussice 4 Pallislive Care, Inc. (COR} s & Florida nongrofit corporation whose mission s 1o
provde hospice and cther end of life services for resigents fiving In Marion, Surater, Lake, Orange. Polk
Cucealn, Hardee and Hightands counties in Centra’ Florida and Cherokee, Cobl, Gwinreft, acd Fulton
cgunlies in Monhwestem Geoigia.

Comerstone Meaith Services, LLC [8YC) 8VC s a Florida singte mamier iimited fanility sompany that
provides paliiative cara services in the countias served by the Affiiates.

Lara Parpers. LLC (CPL): CPL s 2 company regisiered in Defaware whose purpose is {0 davalop and
previde consolidated financiai and purchasing sarvices to the venture partners as well as ciher not-for-
preiit hospice companies. Services may inciude general fnuncial consulting, sproialized gnancial
consufting, 1T vonsulting, aperations consulting, beokkeeping, analytics for managament, and discooniad
greup purchasmg spponiunities for clients.

Chapters i fealth Feundation (Foundation), Foundallon is a nonprofit organization *hat Is en affitlate AF GHS
(a5 scle member of the Foundatlon ard wit! suppast all curent and futire CHS afiliatas,

Hospice of Okeechobee, Inc. (HOK) HOK s & Flonds nonprofit sorperation whose mission s to provide hospice
and cther end-cflife services for regidants iiving in Okeechobes, Martin, and Si. Lucie countles,

[Conlinised)



CHARTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, ING AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS
December 31, 202% and 2022

NGTE 1 - QORGAHIZATION ARD SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contfinugd)

#ope Hospice =nd Cormnurity Senvices, ne. (HOP) HOR s 2 Florida ronprofit cuiporsiion whose mission is
tor provida hospice and other end-of-iife services for rosidaris living m Chavdolie, Colker, Gledes, Henory, end
i ea counbes,

Wiziting Nurses Association of Southwest Florida, e, (ANAY WA i3 3 nonpenfit corporatinn that provices home
and commurnity based health care services to ali people in Charictte, Colier, Glades, Hendry, and Lee
counties. In March 2023 these senvices ware discootinued =nd the Medicare enrcliiment was woluntarily
terminatad.

Capltal Caring Haallh {CCH CCH Is & Virginla nonatock corporation and is fhe sole memper of three supporting
crganizations: Capiral Hospive ola Capital Carng, Copital Canng Stay 8! Hoeme Sendoes, Ine.. anc Capita!
Caring Advanced iithess, (no,

Capital Hosnlea défnla Capital Caring (2APE CAP s @ nonprofi orpanizalion whose mission s to orovide hasploe
and other and-ohifa seevicas for residents Ivtng in Northern Virginia, Washington .G subudsan Marylsnd, and
sumrounding metrogoiitan surmmuritiss. Capital Caring is the anle membar of Dapital Paliatvs Care Consuitanis
(PG
1F AR T

Capial Palliative Care Congultants: CPCL s 3 Virginia single member lImited labiiity cormparny that provides
caligive 2are sendsos inlhe countias soreed Dy CAS,

Capifal Caring Stay at Home 3arviges, Inc {COSH) CCBH iz # virgnia nonprotil organization that offsisg
serdices tha? seek to improve patients' sosial and hysical anvicorments as a means of bettering thalr care ard
guality of life a0 that hey can ultinetely stay al home. Services Irclude care coardination, ranspodalion,
assistanee with nudntions! nesds, varegivar training, home aafely evaiuations, helping with pei carg, ard folher
genaral tonrifinglion of madical and hemedare senicas.

Capital Saring Advanced hness, ino, (COALE CCAl s a Virginia nanprokt organization hat senvices seniors wno
ara home limited or otherwise benelit from recaivinyg nust of thelr cars in the home dug o an advansed liness
of isatiity.

Alicars Medicat of Florida (Alicare’: Aflcare provides s full range of medical ecuipment 3 hospree patients ang
those with fite fimiting conditions. 4 December 31, 2021, CHS awred 90% of Adlcare. CHE acquinsd the
remaining 0% of Alfcare in 2022 and subsequently soid the eniity o an unrelated pady for $1,800.000. CHE
racorded a loss of approximaiety $345 600,

ZareNU, inc. {ONLY: G is o Florda for profit corporation and wass estatdished & prownge patenis with a
eollaboralive feam based approacn to ohranic ifnass care. CNU s authorizaed to issve 100,000 shares of
comrmaon stock. A5 of Decamber 31, 2022, there are 100,000 commaon siock shares issued 2nd oulstanding.

Assurity Direct Contracting Entity (ADCEY. ADCE, a Florida limited liabiity cormpany, provides and amanges
for medicat carg 1o baneficiaties frough managed care capitation agreements in the state of Florida who
hawe enroiled with varicus heallh plans, ADCE' s napitatlon agrenimentds with the various kealth plans are
on a non-nsk basis, TNU owns 50% of ADCE and has been consalidatad with ONiJ for Bnancial reporing
PLIEOSES.

SECUR, nn {SEC) SEC, is a Flodda for-profit corporaicn antd was sstablished as an Iastichons? Speclal
Macds Medicare Advaniags Plan {i-8MP). The sola shareholdsr of SEC is Careflu, inc.

{Cuntinued}



CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC. AND AFTILIATES
NOTES TO CONSCL:DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decemper 31, 2023 and 2622

HOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIBNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PDLICIES (Continued)

Hasis_of Prosamiaton: Tne consoliduted financisl statements have been prapared on the accrusl basis of
scoUnting n acwondsnes wih acouunting prircipies gensrally aozepted in the Linttad States of Amernica (1) 8.
FAAPY

ts inciude the anaounis of OMS

Finansky Sialerment Pra

of cach net assel class based 0+ e exislence of denor restrictions, as apnilcable. Net assets are classified
as net assels withoui donar restrclions or net ussels with donor sestvictlens and are celajled as foliows:

sentalices. The consalidated financial statements report the cnangas in s0d fotals

Net assels withoul gonor restrictions are net assete thai gre ot supject to donor-rastictlons and May
be expended for any purposs in parforing ths orimary objectivas of CHES,

Net asseis with danor restrictions are ret assals subject to stipulations impesed by donors and grantors.
Sorne gonar restidctions are temporary in nature and wili be mat by actions of CHS or by passags of
tme. Olher donor restiiclions are parpatval in nature, where e donor has stipulated tha funds ha
malrtamad in parpatuity.

Mo -yiclghieg inlerest Non-conlratiing isterest s the poriion of tha erjuity cwnarship in an affiliate not
aftributable to the parent campany (CareNU), wha has the controling wiarest, ONU owns §0% of ADCE
ang has naen conyoildaied with SNU for Snancial ropoting purposes,

use of Estenctes: The preparation of consolidaied financial staternsnis n conformity with 3.5, (GAAR
requires managemant 1o maka astimates and assumpiions that afoc! the repones amounts of assets and
lasiites and disclostre of contngent assets and dabiities al the date o the consolidsted francal
statements and the reporied armacnts of revenues and expenses duving the reparting pedod, Aoty rasulta
cowd differ from dose estimales,

Lash end Casl Enuivalents. Cash and cash equivaients consist &f bank da00sits in accounts hat are
federally insurad

up o 3250 500, ALlimes thase smcunts may exceed faderally insured limils. Additicnaly,
for purnoses of the oonsclidated statements of cash flows, CHS considers ! highty dquid invesimenis of
operating cash purchasec with an original maturty of three monins or 1253 o he cash Edivaienis,

Patent Asconnts Hecelvable, Net: The patiert accounts receivable halance rapresents the unpaid amouits
bilied 10 pafients anc third-party payors, which inciuge Medicare, Medicaid, and commercial nsurers.
Contractual adjustments, discounts, and imphcit price concessions arg recerdad o repuil recasables at
ref reafizable value. Pzst due recewatles are delsrmined pasec on contractual terms CHS does not
accrue inierest on any of its accaunts receivable,

e Capliated gecsunts recgivabies consist of amounia due frem manaazy
vare capitated contracis. The capitated receivabies sre carrled at contracted ameounts and capiated
payments are received in dccordance wilh 1w risk adjustment modei and tmodne gasd by the Canters for
Medicara and Maedicaid Senvices.

__________ 2 Note seetvable represants atvarces under a ling of cradit agroomen!t o Uapital Caring
az well a3 funds aned o a software company ta heip davelop somputer software tor hdsoles, Tha suflware
wans are vatued at hlstoric cosl, including vnpaid coniraciual nterpst payments, 1855 @ vaivation allowarce
for which it fa probable shai Capital Caring wil' 98 unable 1o collasl. See Notas 7 and 7 for additionsl
irfarmation.

{Continruad}



CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEh, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMEMTS
DNecomber 31, 2023 and 20272

MOTE 1 - ORGAMNIZATION AND 3UMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Investmenis: Allinvesiments ars staled at thew fair values i the consuiidaiad balanca shests. Unrealized
gains z2nd ‘nszos are inciuced in the change i net assets. Sea Mote 6 for addiional fnfnrmation on the
nature of TH3's investments. invasiment income or foss {acluding reatized and unrzailzed gains and foasaes
on invesimems, interest, and dividends) s included within noncoerating revenues ang axpangss, Linless
tha ingarte ar 0ss s rejated 0 Aasses wilh donor restrictions.

saets Lo as 1o Usa. Cedain airounis of CHS's cash and investiments are iimited oz o use by
provisizns of donor restactions, These cash aisd invsstinonts gie classified as assots limited o use i e
accompanylilg consclidaled balance shasts  Amouets required to moet current liabiities have been
classified as current assets in the consolldated balance sheets al Depembar 31, 20273 and 2022, The
trvestment income or laoss on invesimants that are restricted by donom of faw Is recarded as incroascs or
decredses to rel assels with donor restrictions.

Ipprost Rate Swag Avgrpemonts: CHS antaracd into interes! rate swap agraaments as part of their mterest
rata rigk management stratsgy not for specilation. CHS has elected fo report the inztruments as
freastanding derivativas with gains and losses included within change |0 net assois withow doior
rasitlntlons For opasions,

The derivatlvas ars sgparatad irvs currant and non-currani a3sets of labilites based o1 thair axnecled cash
fows, Gash inflows exipactad within one year, including dervative assats that CHS intands to seltie, arg
reponted as Surrert assels. Gash inflows expeclad bevond one year are reported 35 non-surrant sssels,
Cash cuiffows supactad within one year, hcluding derivalive Nabillias in which the Counisrparly has e
contraciuad right 10 satite, are reparted as current [atilitics. Cash oulfiows expocted bayond ona voar ara
rapcried as non-cuirent labiltias,

inveniodes: nvsniories are sated ai the ower of cost or net realizabls value, using the first-in, Tirst-oui
meathad,

thher Curran! Assets: Other curranl assets are comprsed of primanly of prepaid expenses, dapesils, other

acconls raczivable, and ciher miscellansous current assets. Frepaid expensss at Becember 31, 2623 and
022 werg apurodinestely 37,851,007 asd 55,982 000, raspechvely. Depasils at Decomber 31, 2323 and
2022 were aporodimately 3448000 and 370300600, respectively. Tthgr acoounts racelvanie st
December 31, 2023 and 2022 were approximately 55,248,000 and B845,000, respectively.

Property ang Souips : Froperty and aguipmant are staied at cost or, ¥ acquirsd through an affifiation
agreement or donated 16 GRS, at fair vaiue on the daie of acquisition, Praperty and eguinment acquired
thisugh & business affiigtion iy alse stated ol fair volue. Additions and improvarrents over $2,500 ava
capitalized. Expandiures for routine maintenance are charged to operations. Depreciglion is provige:d
avel the estimated useflul fives of the varows classas of aasets which ranye from thiee & thitky yedrs and
is computad on the straightdine method.

Gifis of long-iived asseis such as fand, buildings or equioment are reponted as unresitcied suppont unless
axplicit donor stipulatiars specify how the donateo assets ara to be used. Gifts of long-lived assats with
axplicit donor stouiatlons that spacify how the assets are 10 ba used and giffiz of cash and ofher assets that
must be used o acquire long-lved assels ara raportad as supporn with doror eastricions. Absent explicit
gorior stipufatiens about how ong those long-lived zssels must be mainizined, éxgpiratons ot danoar
restrictions ars reponted when the dorated or acguired fong-lived assats are placed ir sarvice.

{Conlinuzd)



CHAPTERE MREALTH SYSTEM, INC. AMD AFFILIATES
NEGTES TG CORSOLIDATED FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decemoer 31, 2025 and 2022

NOTE { - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The sost of eropedy srd equipmont 551G o clnanwise discosed of ang the accunuiated dearesiatinn
applicable therswr are efiminatag from e accounts. and ony resifting gain o loss s reflected v tho
sonsclidates Fnanzial steiementz in e year of dispesifion.

labangibte : The Organization has acquired intangible assets through s affiliaton aorecments as
descrbed n Note 2. -ntangibie assets consists of radenamas, cartficates of need, and 2 PAGE license.
The useful lives of the ntanginle asseis range from 15 o 20 yaars.

Impammen: of Lugg-Lived Assets. On an ongoing basis. CHS roviews long-lived assels {proparty and
equipmant and irtangibie assets) for impaikment whanevar avents of creumaiances indicate that the
Larrying Amounts may be overstatad.  CHS considars polental impalimess losses to exist i ths
undiscounted Cash flow expacted v B gererated by ihe assets are Jess than carnving value., The
impairment loss adjusts the asseis o fair vaiue. Curing the year, THE determined that the Achiswe
radsname no lorger had valug gs the home beslih prasties were voluntarily dissalved, C-iS recorded a
wwss of $1.510.134, whizh is inciudad within oss an disposal of licerse within the consdlidated ststamenis
of oparations. As of Decembar 31, 2023 and 2022, management baliaves that ne olher impainments exist,
Goodwil (Sovdwil' o approxmately §15.3%7 660 at Decemiper 37, 2023 and 2022, respactivaly, renresents
the excess of the purchase price over the assigned fair vaiue of e Wentitiabin nar asssals auquirad n
associalion with CHS's purchase of Gond Shepherd Hospics, Inc. (G5H). Quring the year ended
December 31, 2022, CriS sold Adlcars, which resulied in ithe decrease of goodwill of 51,082 518, Coudwill
= tesied for irmpairment annually Uniesa ovents warrant mora fragusnt testing. CHS nas evaiuated is
axlsting goudwdll for impairment as of Decambar 31, 2023 and 2022 and has datarminad shat goodwill is
ESTat M vt izl e

Pagent Larg Lxpenses angd Fstimatad Falient O
perefits undser the Madicare or Medicaid programs, ihe noapice provider becomes tha payor for alf medical
=arvives edated to the patent's tarmingl diagnesis CHS has contracts with vanous providers of nhysiciar,
inpatient, and curpatient ssvices which gensraily state that the provider has approximately 12 months from
the gate of service to invoice GHE for the hospice related chprges. DHS estirrates and records a habiiily
for gatient cale expenses which arg incuned but not reported (8NR)Y. This iIBNR cstimats s based upon
an anaiysis of invoices paid ang estimated cument slilization and other stasistics.  The ditferancs helween
CHE' eglimates of IBNA catient cate edpense and aciual expenses s ncluded in of deductag From patient
cAfe expensss it subsequent peruds by which such differences are iWdeniifios, Patent care pxpenses wera
approximately 347,332 000 and 323 115000 for the years ended December 3t 2023 and 2022
respactvely, and ae inguded in purchasad services in the consolidated statements of oneations.

Care Lxpensas Pavanie; When 3 patieni regeives hospics

; Lidaun Esponse Madical claim expanses are costs for providng medical cars 10
palients under the dirgsl contracting entity and PAGE programs,  The astmated reserve for Incurred hit
not reporied cdaims is includoed In the lsbility for third -pony medical claims sxpense. Actuat clalms sxcense
will difes fram the esdmatec fiahiity due o factors in esiimaten and amues member utitization of haaithcare
s07¢icas. the amount of charges, and othar factors. Adjustmants 1o these aslimates ara racognized in the
geriods in which mors pracise data becomas available.

(Contnued)



CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, NI, AND AFFILIATES
MOTES TO CONMSOLIDATED FiINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Decente 31, 2023 and 2022

NQTE | - CRGANMIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIHG POLIBIES (Tontinuad)

Mgl ratiert Sarvice Mevenues: Fadeni sarvica revenuds ara fepdried al the amaunt $hal reflacis tha
ultimzte conaideratior THE axpects 1o receiva in exchange for arovicing patiant care  These amounis asg
due fram third-party payars, primari’y comimersial heatth inaurers and governrent pregrams [Madicare ang
Medcaid), and incudes variabie conzidoration for revanue agdivstmenis dus to satiements of audits and
reviews, as wall 35 cadtain nnspice.-spacific revenys caaitations. Appraximately 84% and 92% of tha THE
nal patient 2ervios revenus was derived from tha Madicrare and Madicaid programs fos tre yvears ended
Decamber 31, 2023 and 2322, respectivaly, Amounis are genarsily blied monthly or subsequent i patierd
discharys, Subzeguent changes i he rensactor prige infially sgogqnized wre nol significant,

Hpspice sarvices arg provided 9 a daily basis and the type of service Srovided s determined hased on &
physician's determination of each patient s specific nesds on that given day. Reimbursemant fates for
hospice Servicns Gre an 3 per diem basis regardiass of the tvpe of service arpvided or the payor,

Relmbursement rates from government programs are estahilshed oy the appropriaie sovermmental agency
4 i g .

and are standard across gl hospics providers. Beimburssmesnt rateg from healih insurers @ie anygotiated

withr each payer and genarally siruciuret fo ciossly mirros the Medicare reimsursemert mods!,

T types of hospice ersdnes provided and assoziated reimbuiserent mcoe! for 2acn are as foliows:

Hovting Horre Care 900drs winsit 2 patent receivas hospice care in their homea, ingudirg a cusing
rocma aatting. Tha roumine koms cars rata g pad for aach day that 8 catient 15 02 NoSeice Pprogram
and is nol recaiving ons of the other categaiies of hospice care. For Megicare gatients, the routine
home care rate refigcts a two-liored rale, with a Mgher -afe for thz first 60 days of a Aospics palisnt's
care and a iower rate for dayy 61 aind after, v addition, theve i3 a 3ervice Imensity &gd-on paymeni
whizh covers direet home care visiis coenducted oy a registerad nusse or social worker in the insl sevan
days of 3 hospice pefiart's e, reimbursad v tu f0uF hiours par day in fiifean-minuie Increments st the
ceMinuous home cars rale,

(General inpafient Care coclrs when a pationt requires sendeas in a controlled setting for a sto pariod
of trre for pain control o syimplom manggement which cannet be menagesd in other sallings. Genarg)
npatent vaie services must be gravicod in 2 Madicare or Medicaid cedified hospita! or long-term rare
faciiity or at a freestanding inoaten: hospice facility with the regquired registerad nurse staffing.

Corttinvcizs Home Cars is provided to patients white at homa, Including a nursing homa settng, during
pefiods of crisis when intansive monitoring and care, primarily nursing care, 15 recuired in order to
achieve paliiativn or managemer: of acule medical sympluons Continucus home can reguires a
minimum of § hours of care within a 24-hour day. which bagins at midnight. The care must be
predominandy nursing carég proviced by either a registarad nurss or licanses nirse practitionsr. Whils
tha published Medicare and Modicard cnntiruous home care rales are dally rates, Medicars and
tedicsid say for continuous home zare in Riesn-minute increments  This fRzen-minuie rate Is
caisulated by dividing the daily rate by 6.

fFaspite Carg panmits a hospice pationd Lo recaiva sarvices on an wpatient basis for 2 short pariod of
Srmain orcdar 0 provide ralisf for the patient’s family or other carogivers from the demandds of caring for
the patient. A hosples can rocslve payant for respite care for a ghvan patiant 107U (o five consacutive
days at a tma. allar which respite cara 1 raimbursed at tha rowtine home care rals.

{Continuod:
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SHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTER, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decarrper 31, 2025 and 2022

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING POLICIES /Continuad)

Eachleve! of carg represents a separate pramise lnder the centract of carg and s provided independently
far gach patent, continggnt upon ine patiznts aspecific medical nseds as determined by a
rhwsician. However he clinicsl citeriz used 1o determing a patieat’s |owel of care 15 congistani across @
patients, given that, cach pationt is sithjast to tha samea nayor iles and requlations. As a result, OHS bas
conciuded that each fevel of care i capabe of being distingt and is distingt in the contex) of Lhe
conitacl. Furthermore, THS bas determined el sach levet of care represanis a siand ready asnice
provided as a series of either Udys or aours of patiant care CMS helisves that the paformanse obfigations
for gach tevel of care mest criteria to be satisfied over ime. CHS recognizes revenue based on the senvice
output. CHS believes this lo be tha mast faithful depiction of the transfer of cunirol of services as the patbent
simwltaneously recaives and consumes he benefits pravided by The performance, Revenue ia rarngnizad
on a daily or hourly basis for each patient i accordarce with the reimbursement madel far sach type of
sorvive, CHS' performance obligations relate to conlracis with an expected duration of less than one
year. Therefarg, CHS has efected to apply the oplional excoption provided In FAS3 accountng standarg
"Revanug from Conlrects with Customers™ (WS B0R) and is not required to disclose the aggregate amount
of the lransaction prce aliccatad tn performance obligations that arg unsatlsfisd or partialiy uraziisfed af
the end of the reporting ponod. The unsatisfled or partially satisfied perornance obligalions referred o
abeve relate to bareavemant services providad 1o patients’ families for up 1o 12 montks after dizcharges

Cerarally, patieris wha ars covered by third-party payors are resporsibie jor reisted daduclibizs and
cuinsurance wihich vary in amount,. GHS also providas service to pabients without 2 eiirbursement scurma
and may offer these patiems discounts from stapdard charges. GHS sstimatas the fransaction price for
patients with doductbias and coinsurance, along with those uninsursd patients, based an PiEtoncal
experience and current conditions. The estimats of any contractual adustinents. discounts or imphcit price
Loncessions reducss the amount of revenues initially recognized. Subsequent changes 1o the estimate of
the lrensaction price are recordad as adjusiments ic pafient service ravenie 11 the period of
chanyge, Subseqnen! changes that are datermired to be (ha rasult of an adverse hangs in the patlents’
akifity 1o pay {1.e., change in cradit risk! are recorded a3 provision for uncoilectitle sccoumts. CHS has no
atgrial adjustments related to subsequent changes in tha astimate of the transaction price or subsequent
crangas a5 Whe result of an adverse changa i the palient's ability @ pay for ary peried reporisd,

For the CHS’ patients in the nursing home settirg in which Madicaid pays the nursisg home room and
poard, CHE serves as g pass-thiugh belweor Medica and the nursing home. CHS 13 responsibys for
gaying the nursing home for that paiient'a room and board, Medicaid reimburses CHS for 95% of the
armalnt paid to the nursing home, CHE has conciuded that the 5% difference tatweesn the amount pald o
the nursing home and ihe amourt receivad from Mechcaid 15 an adivstrmant (o franssciion prioa and. 5s a
result, the 5% is recognizad as @ saducton o revenue recognized in e ACCOMPANYING cansoiidated
firancial sialemenis.  Nursing home room and board expersss over revoruas for the vaars gnded
Decamber 31, 2023 end X322, ware apnroximataly $2,471.000 and $1 483,000, respactivaly.

Laws and regulations concerming governmant programs. inciuding Medicare ang Medicaid, =g compiex
and subjest ic varying literpretaiinn - Compilsnce with s.eh laws and ragulations may be subjet o future
goveranent review and igierpretalion.  Addiionally, ihe contrants CHS has with comimersial pasith
irsurance payoers provide for retroactive audil and review of claime. Setilament with third party payors Jor
retroactive adjustmenis dus to audils, reviaws o invostigations are considersd varialie consideration and
are Inciugad in the determination of the estimated transaction prics for providing aatiert cara. The varable
considaration is estmaiad based on the (srms of fne payment agraemant, existing correspendarca fom
e payor and our historical settloment activity, Thess astimaies are adjusted in future periads, as new
Information besomes avaliable, Macagemont ntends i fully cooparata with any govambcantal AQENCIAS
in rggliests jor information. Norcompliznos with faws ang requiabions can maks the CHS subject 1o
reguiatory aclion, inciuding ines. senalling, and exclusion Pom the Medicare and Med:caid pregrams.

rantinued;
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CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTER, INC. AME AFFILIATES
NOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Oecamber 31, 2023 ang 2022

NOTE 1 —~ DRGANIZA TION AND SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCGUNTING POLICIES (Confinuad)

Hospice nrganizations are submect to o spocific vayinent Brnit vaps under the Medioare prograre. One
Hrnit relsics to iInpatient care days hat excasd 22% o7 the teial days of bospica carc providad for the year,
THS did not excesd the 20% cap related toinpatient days in 2023 and 2022, Tha secound limit reiales 1o
an sgyiegatc Medicars reimbursemanl cay: calouiated by the THE. GHS did not exceed lhe Medicars
reimbursemant cap for the years ended Dearamber 31, 2023 ana 2022,

During 2020, CkS affitates nad setect Mudiare claims undar review, The amount of the setlemsni
accrued as of December 31, 2023 ang 2022 was suproximatsly $226,000 and $1.004,000, respeciively,
and iz includad in thisd paity seltisments i ine sccompanying consalidated batancn sheets. The rgimaining
halance is for miscellanenus third-narly averpayments.

During 2322, CHS stiflales hao selest Medicare claims under reviea under 2 Targeied Prebe snd Bducate
ragulaicry claims revigw. During such revaew, management deterined there was an eagr in e coding of
cerain claims. CHS seifrerorted and paid opprodimately §4,144 000 back o Medicars. Management
racordnd this as 2 regucton to neld paleit serdee revenue dunng the yaar ended Decomoer 31, 2022,

additionally, during 2022, the Office of Inspecicr Gereral (OIG) « nerforming an audd Medicai Pant A
services ciaed Ly LPH, The vbjerive of the 2udi is o determine whathyr sondoes provided by the
Mospine durng the pericd Jaruary 1, 2020 to Decomier 37, 2021 complied with Medicare requirements
The OiG sudit iz in process and LifePath nas not received ary findings from tha O§G as December 31,
2023 and threugh the date of tho independent Auditer's ispart and therefore has nef recordsd asighdicy as
of Docember 3%, 2023 ar 2072,

Begginming in November 20271, and continuing through Februady 2022, Meaicere sonduntsd o Supplamantal
Medical Roview Coniractor (SMRC) daims review Capital Cartng received notificalions thal the SMRC
claims review identiflad approwmately 32,555,000 of improper paymants. The SMRC ciasmis review
identified approxlansisly $1.433 000 a5 bang improgarty paid by the Stata of Virgnia and was recouped
against paymants 1 2022 The SMRT claims revisw dentified approximanay 31,122,020 as peing
irpropariy naid by the State of Marylard. Approkirmateiy $280,000 was racoupad against payiments in 2022,
and |r Buguat 20232, Capital Caring sntefed wio a2 repaymanl agreement for the ramisinisy balanne of
approximataty $842.000 o be rapaid in 10 monibdy ingtalments, Inciuding interssi al an aniusl rals of
8 375% . Tha remandar of the saltiamant was pasl during the year ended December 31 2023, and thara iz
no payaiie al Oecember 31, 2623,

PACE Reveous: CHS operatas Hogs PACE (Frogeam of Albinclusive Care for the Eldeny). a Medicaze anid
Madicaid pragram that helps peonla meaet (heir haaith care needs in e community instsad of gong u a
nlrsing horng or oiher care facilitiss, PACE serves individuals who: are eyes 553 or older; cartifiad by thelr
3iate to need Alrsing home care; asle 1o lve safely in the community at the tme of snroliment, and live in
3 PALE servee area. Cagitation revenue recognized from the PACE program -elates o conbracts with
nartizipants in wnich tha performance obligation is to orovide healthcare services to the pariicipants, CH2
sontracis diractty with Medicare and Medicaisd lo manage the healthcars neseds of the grograrnm s padicipants
anet recorgs PACE capitation revenls on a per membar, par menin ("PMPMY) basis. Fees arg recnried
4085 IN revenues pecause GHS is acting 35 a peincival in providing far or oyersesing comarehansiva carg
provided to the particioants, CHS considers &l contractks with participante as a single peformanca
abiigation to provde gomarahansive medical. heaitn, end social services that Inladrate acWe and long-tenm
care. The capilation revenues are recognized based onh the estimatad PMPM ransacton price In ratsfer
the service for 2 cisting incrament of the seres {i.a. manity GHE recognizes revenus in the manth in which
participaniz are entitled ko recsive coitprehensive care benetits during e contract term. Dunng the yea:
andel December 31, 2023, CHS recagnirad approximately 541,202 000 in PACE revanue inciuided within
net patient service revnnue includead in the consciidated slataments of operalions.

(Continued?



CHARTERS HEALTH SYETEM <. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TC COMISOL|DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Daecember 31, 2023 and 2022

HOTE 1 - GRGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES Cortinusd)

Caplalec Kevanua Capitated vontisct revenue s recorded #5 revenue ntha month e mambecs ae
eivtitied to healthzare sorvicss through cortracts with ADCE. As of Decermnoer 31, 2023 and 71122, CHS
had caplialion agroements in place wilh one nealthoare payer (nan-risk).

Glany Gamg CHS detaimines each pakent's abilily to pay during the admission process, When a patieni
regts cedain critara, part o all of the patiant’s charges ars deamed charity care and are nat Siliad for
vollectinn. Becsuse CHS does not pursue oollection of amounts deterrninad to qualify as charity cars,
thuse armounis are exciuded Trown net patient soivice raverus The cost of charty care provided wes
appraximately 37,083 000 and §5 743,000 for the years sndad December 31, 2023 and 2037, respactively.
This cost eslimate was Sased on he creanization-wide cost to chasge rotio

in addition o aroviding chardty care in lts continuing aifurt o Farther s mission, CHS also grovices a variety
of progmms and services that raceive e or no funding. These include medical research, medical
pduCALON programs, caregrear programs, axionsiveg communty hermesvemant pragrams, and children's arisf
canters, including lwlcr-yaarty campa.

Contdbitinns: Contrbotions recslved and upcoaditional promises 0 give are racerded as ravane withou!
donor reatdchors or revarua with danar restrictons cependng on the existenca of donor restrictions and
the nature of such restrictions IT they exist. Conditiorai promiass io give are recagnized In {he consolitated
staternenis of operations orly when the condiions on which they degond ape substaniafy mat and tho
pr(n'nises TRCGMS Undorditican al,

When a donor restiotion expires, that is when a stipulaled tve restriction 2nds, or mhirposs restitclion |5
aceomplished. net assats with daror restrictions are reclzssified 1 net assely without donor msiiclions
and renoitsd in the consolidatad stalements of operstions a5 net assels released from reatsetions.

Sonor restricied aiits that arg receved for which thelr resizicled plrgosa is met during ine same vaar are
irially rocorded as net assets with donor restrictions and then reported as nel 23sets releasaed from
resirictions and eciassifeg as nel assels without donor restrictions.

Bonated Servicgs: Donaled seivices are refieciad in e consalidated finangial siatements at tha far vallue
of servicas raceived. The contrbutions of servces are recognized f the sarvices recaived (@) create or
enfiaree non-financia assets o th) requirs spacialized skills thet are orovided by individualis possessing
trnse skiils and would typizsily ngad {u be purchasad I not crovided by donation. Thera were no donatad
seivicas rscognized.

Puriatm
donar res

i . Tha consolidaled statements of sperations include change i nel assels withond
irigtions tefors oiher changes which is designated ag CHS' performance indicator,

e 5. Chapters and the affifiate arganizations, exaept for GV, are exampt from income taxes on
ngoine from related aniivibtes under Scction 8M{a¥3) of tha U5, Intermal Ravenus Code and
carresponding state tax faw. Accordirgly, no piovisicn nas Deen made for faderal or siate income taxes.

A fax gosition is recognizad as & benelit only if it is "more likely than not® that tha tax gosition would ba
sustained in & tax examinalion, with a tax axamination being gresumed to oooin. Tha smount recogrized
is lhe fargest amceunt of tax bangfit tat is groater thar 50% iikely to be rexlizad an examination. For tax
posiions nat meating e “mare Tkely Fan not” fest, o kax benefl is recordod,

L Cartinued:
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CHARPTERS HEALTH SYETEM, NG AMD AFFILIATES
NOTES TO COMSOLICATED FIMNANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decarrber 31, 2623 and 2022

HNOTE 1 - ORGAMNIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad}

Trie apgicable Forms 080 hove nst been subjoot to exemination by the Inlernal Revenua Sendce or the
staje of Florda for the last three yoars, CHY dees not expect the total amiount of unregognized tax hencfita
& slgnifizantiy change it the next 12 montis. CHS recognizes interest ancfor penaities relsied o income
tax matlars 0o ncome tax expense. THS did not have any amounis acciozd for nlaresi and Denaities at
Dacambaer 31, 2023 ang 2022

CNI s a C-oorparation ard & subjac: o incoms taxes, The provision for income taves is determined usmg
the assat and Eability agpioach of sccourting for income axes. Under this approapch, the orovision for
income taxes represents income faxes paid or payable {or recelved o receivabie) Tor tha current year plus
the change in defered ‘axes duding the year. Cefered lzxes reprasent the fullre tax congequences
supected {0 cocur when the reported amounts of assets and fiabiites are recovared o paid, and rasuit
from clifererces cetwesn the financlal and tax basls of the Company's asssts and liatliflies and ars
sdjusted for changes in tax rates and tax aws when enacted. Tax benefits raleted o Uncertain tax positlons
taken or expocled to be taken on a 1Aax return 2re recarcad when such hanetlis maat a mora likely than not
thrashold, Cihsrwise, thesa tax bensfls are recordsd whan a tax position has basn effectively settled.
which maans thai the staiuie of dmiaion tas expired of e aporeprias taxing authodly nas compleled
Wair gxamination even thaugh the statute of lmtatioss remains coen. As of Decgmber 31, 20273, SNU
batavas nere of 1% ncomea tax postons are Lcatain and, aococdingly, has 1o amount provigied for
uncartain @k pasifons. T Company doss nel gapect the wial amount of wirsdonnized as bensfits 1o
significantly changs in the nax! twelve montrg. Intecest and panaltles rsiated o uncertain lax gositicns ars
recognzid as pari of the pravision for Incoma faxas and are acerise beginning In the parcd thal such
interast and panaities woutd Do apslicable ynder ralevant fax law untd suchilime that the refatad tax banefis
arg racognized,

Reclassficabiony: Serain prior yvear amounis have basn rociassified o confoim with the currsnt year
nresgniation These raciassiflicatians did not have any inpast on he sl net asssts orcnange in nat assais.

Hubseaqua® Events: Management has parfarmod an analysis of the activities and transactions subseguant
to December 31, 2023 o determine the need for ery adjustrents to andfor disclosures within the
consoiidated Tinancial stalements for the year arded December 31, 2023, Menagemenl tag performed
thair analysis through Aori: 25, 2024, which is the date the conaclidatad firanc.a: slstemants were availabis
o e Isgued.

tn Jaruary 2024, Chapters and Good Shepherd sald certain assets o Medcare Hospice Sarvicas, LLC o
exchange for 3800.0C0 cash, §300,00¢ noie recaivable and a 20% cquily intsresi in Medcare Hespica
Senvices, LLE Tha purpose of this transacticn s i enter the hospices market in Miami-Dade CTounty,
Florica.

fContituerd)
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CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEN, INC. AND AFFILIATER
NOTED 7O CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2023 and 2022

MOTE 2 - AFFILIATION AGREEMENTS
Current vear!

Hope Hospice and Community Services, inc.:

On Dacernbar 8, 2022, CHE sigeed an sffiat'on agreament with Hope Hespee and Community Services,
inc. and fis affiiales o oxpand GHE markel 'n Soulthwest Floride, On March ¥, 2023, CHS ane Hope
Hospice ard Community Bervices, inc. {collectively, the “Hopz Parizs’i closed thair affiiaticn agreernard
making CHS the sole member of the Hope Paries. Baglsiing on March 1, 2023 tha finandial positian,
results of activittes and cash Fows of all Hope entliles were sonsolidated with CHS. This transadtion was
sicounted for under the acqulsiion acepurding metnod of businass combinations, As 3 resuit. CHS
racorded an inherent cuntribution of $80.281,274 In 2U23. Mo consideration was exclwiged, and no

Fnancial commitments were made, CHS nuured approximately $874,000 in acquisitlon zosts.

The faliowing tabie summarlzes the recogrizard smounts of identiflable agsets anqulred and Habllities

assumed at Mareh 1, 2023
Cash
Patian! acaolnts reseivanis
Ciher aesounts rensivabla
tvastreints
Infangibie assels end radanames
Right-of-use asaats
Peoperty and aquinmant
Oiher asseis
Tori asgets

Accounts payabie
Ancrued expenses
Acoruad payroil kabiites
Losgetarr dats

Laasa liahiliies

Qihar liabilides

Toml lisbilites

Excass of fair value of assels acquirad ower
liakiitiag assumed

inciudnd within nel aszsels without donar rasirictons
froluded walhin net assats with donor restrcions

5 5,531,658
4,509,452
3,008,684

26,560,170
5,378,060
4,794 536

41,884,818

338,273

118,968,550

$  &.009.56%
1,387,540
7,197,485
19,000,000
4,811,293
en SE1,ATY

L 38727 38

5 B0,261,004

e s mum e e

B 80,024 Bad
% 236,380

Hunng the parod March 1, 2028 o Decamber 31, 2023, the antuired debt was paid in iyl

{Continued)
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CHAFTERS HEALTH SYSTFM, ING. AMD AFFILIATER
SOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ETATEMENTS

w5y

December 31, 2023 argd 2007

NQTE 2 — AFEILIATION AGREEMENTS {Continuead)
The pilowing methads weare used i delsrmine falr valus:

Property and squipment - fair value wes determined using the cos! and seies comparizon eppraact,
Tradenames - foir vaive w3s deformised using the royalty refief method, a fom of the ncome
approgch,

Cartificate of Moed ard PACE llcense - falr value was determinsd using the cost agpraach.
Comfractual accounts rocpivable approximates the fair vaus of accounis receivabie.

Capitat Caring Health:

O Decamber 27, 2072, CHS signad an affiliztion agroement with Capital Carng Heatth anc 85 affiliates io

spard CHS markel inlo he Virginia, Margang and the Washingten D.C. matropolitan areas, On fay 4,
2023, CHS ang Capitn! Cadng Heshh (collectivaly, the "Capilal Parties” or "Capiial Caring” ciosad thair
afflfaticr agreament makirg CHE the sola mamber of Cagital Cadng Haalth. Beghnning on May 1, 2025

ihe Sinancia! positicn, results of activitiss and cash flows of all Capial anlities were consaildatad with UHS.

This ransaction wae ascountaod for under the soquisifon acointing mathod of business cembirations. As
@ resull, CHS recorded an nharent contnb ston of $25,131,628 in 2083 Prior io e closing of he affiliation
agesemant on May 1, 2023, ChS aned the Capital Partles 7 050.000 In lwa irarches of 55,004 000 ooy
tn Decombar 31, 2022) and £2,000 000 {pror to May 1, 2523 As part of the afilalion ransaction, tha
S7,00C. 000 waz accountad for as constdsralion paid o the Capital Fartes, CHS incurmed approximately
2092,000 in acquisition costs.

{Caontinued)
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DrAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSQRLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Daceimber 31, 2023 and 2022

MOTE 2 - AFFILIATION AGREERENT {Continued;

The foHlowing tabic summadizes the sslimated fair value of Suptal Carng's assets and liabilities uf May 1,
2023

Cash kS 2,508 678

Fatient ancnunis recsivabie 11,665 358

Fiadyes receviabin 2,362 500

irvesirents 3,231,356

Inlangibles ond raderarmss LA DG0

Right of uze ascats 23741410

Froperty and oquipimeait 19,728,99¢

Other assets . ._._Ba4 6865

Tolat assats

Accounts payatle § 3008547
SO SNIEnsas 5,707 4u4
Acorued payrod fanilities &A05.087
Leose dabiftss IR
e lisbiltios LR
Testal Babit fios 3% 579 T4

Exogss of fair value of assels acquired cuer
liabiliies assunad % B
Less Lonsidetation 5 BUCIE
& G235

T AT F A e e

inciuded within nel assels withoul donoy restrictiong $ 18,204 488
inciudad within net assets with donor restrickons i g9 141

The following mathods were ussd to determine fair valus:

Preparty and equipment - falr vaiue was detenmingd using the cost and salss cornparisen ANGIeach.
Tradenamss - fair value was determined using the rovally refief method. a form of the Inceme
approach.

Contracius deopunis receivable approrimatas the fair value of accounis raceivabie

{Candnued)
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CGHANTERS REALTE SYSTEM, 5T AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TS CONSQLIDATED FiNARCIAL STATERMENTS
Daecembar 31, 2023 and 2022

MIITE 2 - AFFILIATION AGREEMENT {Continyed)
Brior year:
Corpersicne Hospice & Palliative Care, Inc.:

Sin Decempar 2, 2021, CA5 signed an offiliation agreoment witn Covnersiona te expand CHS market n
Sentral Fiovida and four counlios 1 Nodhwest Georgia. On Agnf 1, 2072, CHS and Comerstong
fenllgstivaly, the "Fariies™ closad thel affiation agreamant making CHS the soig member of Cornerstane
Beginning on Apnl 1, ’7032‘ the balance sheel, resuis of aotivites and cass fiows of 51 Comersione entilies
wara consolidated with GHES . This transaction was acsountad for under the acyulsition aocounting rmethodt
of Jusiress comblnations. As & resuit. CHS recordad an Inheren! condribution of 375 721,681 in 2022 No
comsideration was eachizngas. sl ou financial commitrments were mazo. CHS hourrad aporoximataly
£375.000 In acquisition costs.

Tho following tabie sumisnarizes the astimated Tair value of Comersione's assets and fishilities at Azl 1,
2022.

(iash E 25 850,300
Ratiant acoounis moaivabla 5,408, 8#’1
Prgnaids 2,980
interey? i net a8seis of Coicarstone Foundalion R !‘LL!{
intangities and Trazenamas 7 A3 000
Right-ofuss assels §,454, 209
Proceny and eoupment A7 .RE3E 339
Diher sssets ¥ Oee 207
e from ratated party 1482305

Total assela 'H 91y 5iG
Avgounts payable 2.0 G0y
Acoiues sxpensss ardd payroll habilities 8,555 15
Right-o-use lianiidies 0 Afik, 2R
Mole pryabia 2510 6
her sbikties ST, 500

Totas liakiities 153 123,832
Exoess of iy wloe of assets poquiied oues

habitities assumad E o 7E V89,881
irciudad within nat assets without donae esinchons $OB3,662,508
Inmtided within nat assets with donor restrictions 5 12,115,092

The foliowinyg mathods ware used to determing fair value

Froperiy 20¢ equipmant - fair value was determined Lsing e cost and sales compariscn aporoach.
Tradenamas - faiv value was deiennined using tha royalty relief method, a farm of the income
approach.

Contraciugl socourts rebeivable ppoicmates ihe faic vallie of aecounts recaivabla

{Cortinuad}
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CHAPTERS HEAL TH SYSTEM, INC . aMD AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Deromter 31, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 3 - LIGUIDITY AND AVAILARILITY

Financial assets avaitashe for genoral expenditure, thal i3, withoul donor or alher resinctions Hrniting their

e, wrthin one year of the batance sheet date, conipnse the folfowing:

2521 2022
Cash anc cash eguislenis 5 0FA1EAN 5 A38h700
Shart-tor inwezimants 11872530 3,291,144
Patient accounts reteivabla, nat 40,823 345 118,850
Capitaticn recehalia €. 016, 4540 FO90.173
D frome reigted parky 575,080 5 729083
Pledges recenalie, cument pertan 423,454 458),305
QHier cuent assels SRS A RS A LAk

& 102025880 % b7 394,087

As part of CHS' liquidity management glan, management invests cash i excess of dally requiraments in
shom-iarm investinenis and monay markat fonds. CHS has a goal o maintain financial assats, which
vonsist of cash and snemt-denn nvesiments, on Fand to meet sizly davs of nermal operating exoenses
CH3 has a policy o siructires i firancial assets to he avallabio as its genera! expendiucs, liabities, and
other ohligations coma due. Tha THS treasury managemen: function is consmlideted at the paren: leval
and pays axpenses on behaif uf ils affiisies. CHS typinaily coflects patient acerunls recewsble within sixty
days of the dara of cervice and its Elarida based hospice afffistes particicate in tre Medicare Parindic
Inteniim Paymsnt program {PIR) which provides bl-weokly cash payments basod on management's oatlmats
of censys. SHE reconciles PI2 with actual hidngs three imas per year and the net PIP pesition is racordad
i patient accounts racedvable. In the event of an unantcipatad liguidity need, CHS could witize the iong-
term invesiments that are not doner restricted THS could ulize the fings of credt as desaribed in Nata 40
shwaddd llgmdity naeds arisa,

MOTE 4 - PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVARLE

AtLacambar 31 patient acoounts recaivable by paver cateqcry conalsts of ihe fallowng'

£044 i)
Medicare § 58820123 § o043
Wedicaid 11426 487 B.300,953
Other thirg-parly payors IERSS R I T 883526
Less Medicare Pericdic Interan Payments (RIP) (12,776,227 {18 345831
Lags Irrpieit pricy concassions _ 126307 432y (i8.424707)

$ 43623340 § 19.119,50¢

A B S TR

(Continuad}
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CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC. AMD AFFILIATES
ROTES TO COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS
Decamber 31, 2027 and 2022

MOTE 5— ASSETH LIMITED AS TO UER

The compasition of agsels limited ag 0 use g% Deceber 31 15 as fcllows:

Cash and oash scuivaients
Monoy markst funds
ditug) linds

Loss currart porlion

MOTE & ~ INVEBTMENTS

Invaastmenis, atated ar fair valys, at Deoamber 31 inotuite.

Cash énd cash equivaiants
Morsy raskat funds

Li3. governinert agencles
Corporate bonds

Ecuity muti:af funds

Borid mutugl funds
Corpmuodibas raukdat funds
Real estais fund

ity securiies

Lous current porfion

5 5:529,301
1,963,565

'1 364 1.«&
’I Mlm’ -89
(4.820.251;

2023

$  sBBTOB
3,252,503
527 555
581,267
74,2472 791
G, 802,093
1,422,839
4 J'TG a74
L 8 avs034
100,783,703
11,572,539)

AN

3 3452 Add
00,0597

I 720 286
241 92“’
[hdas G4d]

¥ i et ot

20
% 1,780,247
7420132
£FA813
258,356
71,086,827
&R 080
1,509,574
943 147
.. 8.976.99

V456,651

S Ak
Lamtaus ke

Invesiment income from aszots iimited as to use a4d nvesimenis ts comnrisad of thae folloraing for the vaarg

angled Dacsrmbar 37,

Imerost and dividends, net of faes
Met reglized gains on sales of securitas
Mat unrealized gains {'nases)

{Contdruead)

2043

3382083

5,855,183
_B.2zBe28

317843574

202

L 3,223,454
110 521
{21,881,023)
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CHAPTERS HEALTH SYITEM. INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAMGCIAL STATEMENTS
Decamber 31, 2023 gnal 2022

MOTE 7 .- HOTES RECTIVARBLE

Capital Caring: During 2022, CHS antered inly a ling of credit agreerent with Capitat Caring. Tha nols 1s
4 revoiving ling of cracil (i) for the period prior to the securranas of the affiilation ovent, an amouni of op o
$5,000,000 anu {ii) attar ihe occurrence of the effiiation svent, an &mount of up 1o $10,000.000 i the
acrurtance of an affiliation {armination Evan, the ravolving line of aradit shall pe educe to 43 and no furthay
advanves may be requesicd o mads without the witten consert of CHS. Capital Carning may borrow, rapay,
and reborrow rargunder and CHE rray advance and reaidvance under this note fram time o tme untii the
graication date. The affilation evert is definad as the consummation of the affilistion agresmant whersty
CH3 bevomes tre sele member of Capital Caring, which ccourred i ey 2023, The affilkatics ermination
eveni is defined a5 the fine that Capitai Caring nolifiss CHS that ingy wiil no longer sxecula of consummals
the affilistion agreemant. The nota bears an irderest rate at ine sun of the Wal Street Journal Prime rate
piug 2%.

Cn ciosing of te alfiliation agreement, the nota receivable balance betwasn ©HS 2nd Capltal Caring wos
sethed. As of May 1, 2023, Captal Carning had a balance cilstanding of §7. 00000, wweh GHS resognizes
& consdaizlion paid o Capilsl Caring as part of the affiliation agresments. CHS and Cagital Saring
continue 1o Wilizae the credit agreement to iennd and regay funds Delwesn the organizatons. The terms did
not change post-afiifation. The cutstanding %runce on the nole receivabla was $3000500 as of
Dacember 31, 2023, As of and subsaquant io the AfRlation Event ihe note receivable simirates in the
canscidaied financtal statements.

Zathgare corupany: Capitai Caring advanesd furdds 1o a softwarg Srepany headguartersd in Movw Citeans,
Louisiana. The software company develops nemputer softwara for the hospicn industry. All advanses ars
to be used solety for buziness purcoses and are gtated stunpaic principsl balances. The foans are ssoured
by the assels of the borfower and guarantur of e advances, There were no fees iavolvad in thess
transactions. Mo new ivans witl ba madse 10 the sofiware company beyond those fizisd Balaw.

‘nterest on the loans is rscogniced over the fves of the loans and is calfousatad on the culstanding prinaipe:
Yalane,

Loar reeenabla ariginaling in Agril 2015: $1.006,000 payatte in ful in Apeil 2020 or payabla Lpon sals
of fransfer a8 defined balow, intares! aocues guariaty at the 12% (12% af Decemter 31, Z023). An
allowarce for dototiui accounts in he amount $1,000.00G has been racordad for he outstanding
receivanie balence at December 31, 2023,

Luan raceivabls originating in Apel 2018 for §1.600.000 orgins nole weas smendod several limes for 5
total balance of $2.970.000; pavabile in full in Febrsary 2021 of pavahla upon £aie or transler as defined
pelow interast acories quariurly al 12% (12% at Dacember 31, 20231 intarest on ife amendad
AmoUNiS auerues at an annug! interest & of 12% An aliowance for doubtfal accounts in the amaunt
$2.570.00C fias been racordad far tha oulstanding receivass balance at December 31, 2003,

¥a satg of angter of the doruwer vcaurs priar 16 the loar maturty dates, principal and ary unpaid intgrosi
is due i full plus a percantage of the gross saie procescs in excass of $13,000.000. ¥ ne saie or wransfaer
oS withan fres vears of the origination date, tha rapaymant amourt is equal 1o the prinipal plus a
patcentaga of e borrowar antly's current value based on a muitizle of the borrawar snitty’s earrings
nelore infersst, dapraciation. and amcrtization,

An allowance for doobtfl accounts of $1,154 285 has haen establish dicr the setTaiting inierest amounis
contractually due from the software company as managsment has determined # is probabie the
organization may not be able o colect such amounts. Par tha related note agreements, Capita! Caring can,
inthe evant of cefaulf and attar notice i© the barrowe, semmence sichlegal acticns or procasdings against
the barrower and guarantar, as permitfed undsr the agreemant or Otherwlse at low or Al aguity.

(Continusad}
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CHAPTERS HEALTH SYSTEM, (NC. AND AFFILIATES
MOTES TO CONSDUIDATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS
Docsmber 31, 2023 and 2022

HOTE 8 — PROPERTY AMD EQUIPKMENT

Propery arid equinment ag of Ducember 31 is a5 follows:

023 2022
Land ard lond improwemenls 3 20,083,828 &% 15.8EB THY
Buildingg wt leasehold improvements 237 BO0 28T ug, B14.814
Furmilure, fixiures, and equeprmant 75,430,087 a0 147 BGS
Yahicles 2735084 TR 848
Profects In proness - L = 1_2_ 450 483
31:208624 178,597, £33
Less acoumutated danteciaiion (148,345,234, (34,528 50%)
$ 184,962,290 b 93,968,570

L D

Proizcls in process al December 31, 2023 congist primeriy of scttware implemeniation and general faciity
ungrades 1o be dlacet in servive i calendas year 2024, Trere are net any significant prajacis plannad o
coiTHRiimanis entered inta.

Deprecialion exgenss for he years ended Dacembor 31, 2023 ard 2022, was agproximarely $11,262, 500
and 39033000 respectively. No interas! sxnense was capitalized during 2023 or 2022

MOTE 8 - LEASES

Al the incepticn of an armangemert, CHS deternines F an arrengament is & |ease based on all reigvant
facis and circurpstances. Leases are classlied as nparating of fnanne laasas ot the Basse commsnaament

date Operating leases are inciuded in cpersting sease ROW assets, Suirent anerating leass lacilitiss and
lgng-term operating lease Habiities gn the bolance shzets. Finanee lases ars incivdad in oronerty ond
gQUInMEN, surrent maluritias of long torm debt and finenes leasas ano fong-term debt and finaree (easas,
net of current roalutities, on e balance sheets. Leases aro ciassiiied between gcurrent and inmg-term
liabitios cased an ihelr payment larms Lagse azpanse for aperating leases s recognized en a siraight-
lire hasis aver tha lzass arm. Leasss with a tacm of 12 months or lass (short-term feases) ars nol redorded
on the balanee sheets. ROU asseis repretent CHS's right to use an underlying assel for the gase lerm
and laase liabilities represent the ohligation (o make isase payments arising from the ;eese. ROU asasts
and ieace iabiitiog are ranognizad ar tha lgass commancement date based on the estimated prasant values
of leage paymends over the IRase term, ROU Azsets also include prepald rant ano arg adjusted by tha
unamortized Salarnce of laass Incentives.

Ag tha impiicit rate 8 genarally oot readily dalevminatie for all of CHY's leases, CHE ulilized the sk fes
rate, which is dervaed from information avaltable at the paze commencameni dala, in datermining the
prasant value of lgass pavments, Some {aases include one or eore opiions 1o extend the isase, with
griersicn terms that can extend the lease tere by one o ‘ve yeara, The alercise of lease extansion options
ia at OHS's sote disoration. The lease term includes sptans o extend or tenmirate tha Icase when 1ia
reasonably cartam that CHS will exerorse that optinn. SHS generally coneluted options (o extend the igase
arie reasonably cartain to be exarcised when it is oosi pronibitive io relocate operatians or pursue altarnative
leased agseis, Certain feasas contain garly temination panaties: howsvar. as of Decamber 31, 2023, 118
not reasonakdy cartain that CHS will exercica or becomme subject 0 svch gadly terminagtor penaliies.

{Continued)
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CHAPTERS HEALTH BYRTER, INC. AMD AFFILIATESR
NOTES TO CONEDLIDATED FINANCIAL STATENENTS
UCseamber 3, 2073 and 2022

MOTE 9 - LEASES 'Continied)

Nongerormance-relsied dsfault covenams, cross-gefault nrovisicns, %ub'ccii”c default pravisiona and
rateiar advarse change clauses conteingd it material icaso agrasinents, if eny. zre also cvalualad o
detormine whethior thoso clanses aFer! luase classiication Real estate and vehicla laases comprize the
maiarity of CHE&'s raaging aotivities.

CHS accounis fof lease agreemants wiitl lease end non-ipase compenearts sepammtely. Operaling expenses
and property taxes due far Isazed izolites are aceounted for as non-lease components, | sases with 3 torm
graater (Nan Lne Year arg restgnized oo the consoiidaled balance shest as RiiJ assels and lesse liabilities,
CHS has elected not o regagnize on the consalidatad balance sheet leasas with terms of one vear or less.
: Decamber 31, 2023 and 2022, the right-n®iss Asss! relatet [0 coerating leases was agproximately

52 DU and $28.234.000, respectively, and i recorded in the sceoms pEnving sonsolidated balancs
sheets_

w T

Loass axpansa & acognized on a shaight line basis ovar the term of the ase and présentsd as 5 singte
chargs in the consolidatad statemants of operstions During the vears sndad Dacembor 31, 2023 and 2022,
CHE recordad apﬂ"o‘ﬂm taly 58.278,08 and §4.560,000, respactvely, |"1 iBage prpansa. The weighisd.

avarage remaining coerating lease e was 8,14 vears al Decersber 31, 2023, Tre waighted average
siscouni rata s 1505,

A surnary of fiture cpsrating lnase pavivents at Ducember 31, 2023 is as follows:

A& sumimary of matunities “or oparating leasas at December 37, 2025 i3 ag follows:

2024 S a0
TER o 175 244
2006 70 208
PN &.182 350
2028 STRZT2
Thereaiter o dm B
Totat lasa paymsls 58,890,569
Less: fmount repreganting intesest {Effff_@"
Mrasant waile of isase lakilitles %

NOTE 10 - LINES OF CREDIY

Comarstone has ohained wo lines of crad, & revoiving line of oredit and a nonsrevaiving line of credit,
frors & financis! inslittion. The reveling Ine of credt has availability of $7,3500,000, howavsr, of {hat
haincs, $330.000 Is rostricted as 4 letter of cradit for tha workers comparsation insuranca policy. Thara
I3 1 outstanding nalanca o iz ding of oredit at Docember 31, 2022 Camarslone's nan- ravelying g of
credil has an availaile hurowmg et of 511,256,000, Thara is ne outatand Mg batance o ihis line of credit
at Decamuer 31, 2022, Boin lnes of credit acorus interes] o a variadle rate 5 { Biocmbery Short-Teer 2ank
Yigitc index rale plus 1.75%. The Hras of credit are secured by & Negative Fledys agresment wirich wit
expared on Aprd 30, 2023, Management did not exiend the frnos of credit afier Aprd 30, 2023,

inMay 2023 Chasters abtamed a revolving lina of crodit wilh 2 financial instiuton. Tae line hes avadagit by
of §7 307,000 and incurs intarast ar 2 cate of monthiy simple SOFR Slus 1.45% As of Decembar 31, 2023
thera Mab no OLJL‘% andmc balaw-:e 0{ hﬂ i of o rE-dlI Tnz Hng maivres in ."cw 024,
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